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1.1 Submission of the Annual Report to the Executive Authority 

In accordance with the provision of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999), we have the pleasure in submitting 
for presentation to Parliament this report of the activities of Robben Island Museum for the financial year ended 31 
March 2016. 

Mr Sibusiso Blessing Buthelezi 
Chairperson of the Council 
31 July 2016 

1.2 Robben Island Museum's general information 

Robben Island Museum Registered name 
Registered office address Nelson Mandela Gateway to Robben Island 

Clocktower 

Postal address 

V &A Waterfront 
Cape Town 
8002 

P.O. Box 51806 
Waterfront 
8002 

Telephonic contact number 021 413 4200 
Email address infoi@robben-island.org.za 
Website address www.robben-island.org.za 
External auditors Auditor-General of South Africa 
Bankers information Nedbank and Standard Bank 
Company secretary Statucor (Pty) Ltd 

1 .3 List of Abbreviations 

AFS Annual Financial Statements 

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa 

APMHS African Program in Museum 
and Heritage Studies 

APP Annual Performance Plan 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CHO Chief Heritage Officer 

DAC Department of Arts and Culture 

DEA Department of Environmental Affairs 

DAFF Department of Agriculture, Forestry 
and Fisheries 

DPW Department of Public Works 

EPP Ex-Political Prisoner/s 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

ICMP Integrated Conservation Management Plan 

MoU Memorandum of understanding 

MSP Maximum Security Prison 

NMG Nelson Mandela Gateway to Robben Island 

PFMA 

PHED 

PR 

RI 

RIM 

RIWHS 

SAHRA 

SAMSA 

SAMA 

SARS 

SCM 

SETA 

SMART 

UNESCO 

us 

uwc 

VAT 

Public Finance Management Act 

Public Heritage Education Department 

Public Relations 

Robben Island 

Robben Island Museum 

Robben Island World Heritage Site 

South African Heritage Resource Agency 

South African Maritime Safety Authority 

South African Museums Association 

South African Revenue Services 

Supply Chain Management 

Sector Education Training Authority 

Specific, measurable, achievable, realistic 
and timed 

United Nations Educational, Scientific and 
Cultural Organization 

University of Stellenbosch 

University of the Western Cape 

Value Added Tax 



1.4 Foreword by the Chairperson of Council 

Introduction 

ormat1on 

On behalf of the Council of Robben Island Museum World Heritage Site, I am pleased 
to submit the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2016. This report is submitted 
in accordance with the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996; 
the Cultural Institutions Act of 1998; the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 
1999; Treasury Regulations, 2001 and other applicable Acts and Regulations. 

High level overview of the entity's strategy and the performance of the public entity 
in its respective sector 

The outgoing RIM Council has tremendously improved the governance of the Institution 
through Ensuring that Council held all statutory meetings. Council, through the Executive 
Office, coordinated planning and reporting aligned to Treasury requirements. Performance reporting against predetermined 
objectives has significantly improved from 46% (2014/15) to 58% in 2015/2016. This is testament to the uncompromising 
determination by Council and Management in entrenching a culture of good corporate governance. Also, a turnaround 
of the RIM's financial health has been achieved by strengthening internal controls during the period under review. 
I am pleased to report that Robben Island Museum has obtained an unqualified audit report from the Auditor-General. 

Strategic relationships 
During the period under RIM strengthened strategic relationships within South Africa and on the African Continent. 
On the latter, RIM is preparing to sign an MoU with Le Morne in the 2nd quarter of 2016/17, while relations with 
Goree Island are being finalised through the DAC. At national level, RIM signed Partnership Agreement with National 
Department of Tourism (NOT) for implementing the "Destination Development Project) and installation of the 
Photovoltaic solar panels as part of greening the island. RIM should accelerate efforts to reduce Carbon footprint 
on the Island as a conservation strategy. 

Another Partnership Agreement with the African World Heritage Fund (AWHF), a UNESCO Category II centre, 
witnessed the hosting of the first African Regional Youth Forum at Robben Island, which was attended by over 25 
participants from sub-Saharan Africa. AWHF and RIM also partnered in developing the Integrated Disaster Risk Plan 
for the site as required by the Operational Guidelines of the World Heritage Convention. These partnerships remain 
cardinal to augmenting internal resources in order to implement heritage programmes and also supporting DAC's 
cultural diplomacy initiative on the African continent. RIM Council is cognisant that these partnerships come with 
financial obligations and will continue engaging DAC and intensifying/diversifying own revenue streams to create 
sustainability. 

Challenges faced by Board 
During the period under review the Board faced the following challenges; 

• Recruitment of a substantive Chief Executive Officer following the end of the term for the outgoing Chief Executive
Officer, Dr Sibongiseni Mkhize. Council appointed an Interim CEO during the period under review and expects
to appoint substantive CEO in the first quarter of 2016/17.
• Funding for RIM remains not aligned to RIM's compliance requirements as a WHS thereby making it difficult
to implement the 2nd ICMP with certainty. While alternative funding has been sourced for some programmes,
financial support remains inadequate for fully implementing the 2nd ICMP by 2018.
• Though organisational review has started, the current structure remains not aligned to 2nd ICMP and neither
does it promote financial sustainability of the institution. The organisational review being implemented will assist
in addressing this misalignment.
• While the Tripartite Agreement has been signed by DAC, DPW and RIM regarding the management of the Built
Environment, Municipal Services and Landscaping of the Island, a lot of effort needs to be made in delivering results
in this area.
• Relationships between RIM and Ex Political Prisoners have not been very cordial as illustrated by their opinions
expressed in various platforms by the latter. While RIM has made efforts to create dialogue with EPPs (whose
relationship with the island is lifelong), it is critical that DAC brokers a political solution to ensure RIM implements
her mandate, while the expectations of EPPs are addressed in a holistic and inclusive manner, a process beyond
the competency of RIM as a cultural institution.
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Medium to long term goals of the entity 
Going forward, it is important for RIM to; 

• Normalise relations with Ex Political Prisoners Association (EPPA) to ensure that Employer-Employee Relations
are maintained in the work place, socio-economic benefits of EPPs are addressed in a holistic manner as a stakeholder
driven process and that EPPs continue to be a cardinal source of the narrative, including passing on this to future
generations through a properly managed succession plan. The strategy is to build a new generation of guides with
the EPPs as mentors for the prison narrative to ensure transmission of correct social memory.
• Continue to implement the 2nd ICMP and related plans by providing adequate financial resources and recruiting
skilled personnel. Implementation of the Integrated Disaster Risk Plan (IDRP) that will be finalised in the 1 st quarter
of 2016/17 and the Infrastructure programmes remain a priority, including preparing for the review of the 2nd ICMP
which expires in 2018. An integrated approach is required in this review process.
• Improve the presentation and delivery of a holistic and inclusive narrative that takes into consideration the multi
layered values of the cultural landscape. RIM is exploring a new tour model and tour options under product diversification
strategy adopted by RIM.
• Implement sustainable development towards diversification of revenue streams in order to augment the grant
from DAC. RIM Council has deliberately adopted the Adaptive re-use concept as part of product diversification and
increasing revenue streams towards attaining sustainability for conservation, operations and staff costs. Sustainability
of RIM as an institution remains a going concern which needs to be creatively resolved without destroying the site
by implementing alternative revenue streams.
• Broaden strategic partnerships to support operations at national and regional level to support implementation
of the 2nd ICMP and Operations. It is important for RIM to maintain cordial relations with UNESCO and Advisory
Bodies, including national chapters of Advisory Bodies such as ICOMOS-SA
• Proper infrastructural support for Mayibuye Archives through intensifying the process of finding alternative space
for Mayibuye within the V&A to increase public access to the archive and as part of product diversification. Negotiations
on the relocation of Mayibuye from within UWC remains important as part of expanding the influence of UWC,
like many other Universities, who have satellite campusses that are social centres and within the reach of the greater
public.
• Finalise the organisational review in relation to address the current misalignment between the structure and
strategy, staff compensation costs and ability to fund programmes, as well as create sustainability for RIM.

Acknowledgements / Appreciation 
RIM Council would like to thank DAC for supporting RIM, as well as the outgoing RIM Council for their commitment 
in serving RIM. Considerable achievements have been attained during the tenure of this Council. A special word 
of gratitude goes to the Department of Arts and Culture, the Portfolio Committee of Arts and Culture, the Department 
of Environmental Affairs, the National Department of Tourism, the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, 
the Department of Correctional Services, the African World Heritage Fund, the South African Heritage Resources 
Agency, the City of Cape Town, the University of the Western Cape, Stellenbosch University, the MTN Foundation 
(SA), Google (SA) and the Consulate of the Republic of Namibia. 
I am grateful to the staff of Robben Island Museum, without whom the museum would not have achieved its strategic 
objectives. Lastly, I would like to sincerely thank my fellow members of Council for their diligence and dedication. 
I also wish to thank all the stakeholders who have been pivotal in supporting the museum. 

Conclusion 
Positioning RIM to become self sustainable and responsive to contemporary needs without comprising the significance 
of the site as a national and World Heritage Site remains important for incoming RIM Council. We wish them a 
successful term with RIM. 

Mr Sibusiso Blessing Buthelezi 
Chairperson of the Council 
31 July 2016 



1.5 Chief Executive Officer's Overview 

Introduction 

ormat1on 

I have great pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of the Robben Island Museum 
World Heritage Site for the year 2015/2016. During the year under review management 
continued to focus on the implementation of the Integrated Conservation Management 
Plan (ICMP) 2013-2018 and the new Business Model. This report expands on the 
Chairperson's Report by paying particular attention to the operational programmes of 
the museum. 

During the period under review, Council and management placed particular attention 
to the stabilization of the organization. Although significant progress has been made 
in strengthening the control environment and an improved governance arrangement 
with the department of Arts and Culture and department of Public Works, serious 
challenges are still experienced due to the inappropriate organizational structure, lack of a culture of performance, 
inadequate funding for programmes, misalignment between the strategy and the organizational structure, and lack 
of clarity regarding the museum's relationship with ex-political prisoners. 

1. Corporate Governance Arrangements

During the period under review Council had 5 meetings and its four Council subcommittees: Audit and Risk 
Committee, the Finance and Remuneration Subcommittee, Governance Subcommittee and Heritage Subcommittee 
had no less than 4 meetings each. 

The Audit and Risk Committee's composition is in compliance with the Public Finance Management Act. It consists of 
three external and independent members and two members of RIM Council. It operates in accordance with the Audit 
and Risk Committee Charter which was approved by the Council of RIM. A new Audit and Risk Committee was appointed 
from 1 December 2015, and will serve for a period of three years. 

Internal Audit is performed by an independent external audit firm, Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo, who were appointed in 
August 2013 for three years. The Internal Auditors report operationally to the Chief Executive Officer and functionally 
to the Audit Committee. They perform their audit in accordance with a three-year strategic plan and an annual operational 
plan. 

In addition to the ordinary meetings Council had Strategic Planning and Governance workshops in December 2015 
and January 2016. The purpose of these workshops was to give Council an opportunity to provide input on the 
Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan 2016/2017 as well as to enhance their skills in governance so as to 
equip them with the necessary skills to carry out their fiduciary responsibilities. 

2. Financial Performance

The finances of the museum are managed in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act. As was mentioned 
above the museum's internal audit is conducted by a private company and its work has assisted Council and 
management in strengthening the control environment and risk management. For the sixth consecutive year, RIM 
has received an unqualified audit report for under the outgoing Council and Executive Management. 

Although the museum's bank balance appears to have substantially increased, it is important that this is understood 
within a particular context. The amount includes R19,8 million which the Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) 
deposited in March 2016 for infrastructure and facilities management relating to costs recovered for diesel to generate 
electricity and the Blue Stone Quarry project. The uncertainty regarding the funding of diesel to generate electricity 
creates a serious challenge for the museum. It is important that the museum's balance sheet is not interpreted within 
the same framework of government departments. As a public entity the museum is expected to generate income 
in order for it to be able to spend money on its projects. Furthermore, the Museum requests to retain its surpluses 
yearly, this has allowed the Museum to ring fence approximately R100 million to procure a new vessel to replace 
the Museum's ageing fleet. The replacement vessel will have a positive impact on the Museum's operating performance 
as well as reducing costs of hiring boats from service providers. 
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The breaking down of the main ferry in December 2013 and the unreliability of the historic boats has continuously 

dealt a significant blow to the museum's ability to generate sufficient revenue to carry out its programmes as outlined 

in the Annual Performance Plans (2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/2016). The museum management was compelled 

by these circumstances to have to rely heavily on hired boats and this has caused a huge dent on the museum's 

revenue. More than R44 million (R38 million in 2014/15) was spent on the hire of boats during the 2015/2016 

financial year. 

RIM received approval from Council to source an expert boat broker to assist with the acquisition of a new vessel 

for RIM. It is anticipated that a new vessel will be procured within the next 24 months. The anticipated cost of 

the acquisition of the new vessel is Rl 00 million which will be funded out of RIM retained surpluses which arose 

as a result of operational efficiencies reported in the recent past financial year(s). 

Should the vessel be procured during the MTEF 2017-2020 period, it is anticipated that it would have a positive 

impact on RIM's operating performance due to reduced costs of hiring boats from service providers. 

However, it must be noted that the RIM Council has made a decision that in the short to medium term boat hire 

will remain part of RIM's business as RIM Ferries (in their current form and number) will never consistently ferry 

tourists to the Island on their own, they will always require external boats to provide extra capacity to ensure 

reliability and consistency of ferry operations. Hence from 1 January 2016 a 12 month contract was signed with 

ferry service providers and soon management will be going out to the ferry service providers to negotiate a further 

3 - 5 year contract. Strategically it is beneficial for the organization going forward to maintain a relationship with 

the hired boat service providers as use of their vessel aids to the continuity and reliability of Robben Island's 

operations, during periods of maintenance and high demand. 

Despite the above mentioned challenges coupled with exposure to fluctuating ferry maintenance costs and diesel 

prices which pose a significant risk for planning purposes, the museum has consciously maintained its ticket prices 

at relatively affordable rates taking into account its developmental imperatives and the need to remain accessible 

to international and local clients. 

As in the previous years, RIM management has continued to intensify cost containment measures and to strengthen 

the control environment. A myriad of efforts are always employed to identify and quantify existing commitments 

to ensure that these are matched with RIM's income generating capabilities. 

RIM's sustainability remains a matter of concern given the misalignment between her mandate and the grant received 

from DAC, including the seasonality of own revenue, which negatively impacts on the implementation of the 2nd 

ICMP in compliance with the World Heritage Convention and the National Heritage Resources Act of 1999. The 

high personnel expenditure continues to negatively impact on the museum's core business, more particularly heritage, 

education and tourism. Council is engaged in a process to address these challenges through diversifying income 

streams and organizational redesign. In addition, RIM continue to face the uncertainty regarding the funding of 

diesel to generate electricity, another serious challenge for the museum's funding requirements as this responsibility 

was assigned to RIM without the necessary funding from the Department of Public Works. However, since DPW 

returned this responsibility, it must be noted that DAC has defrayed RIM's obligation regarding diesel on a yearly 

basis but has not committed for future years. 

3. Planning and Performance Reporting

Performance reporting and planning is done in line with the National Treasury Framework. Performance is evaluated 

on a quarterly basis against predetermined objectives that are approved by the Department of Arts and Culture, 

to ensure that the Museum achieves its strategic objectives and mandate. The compilation and review of performance 

information is facilitated by the Risk Department, each quarterly and annual performance target is thoroughly evaluated 

against the relevant evidence to ensure accurate, valid and complete information is reported. 
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4. Risk Management

Risk Management is a standing item at management and Council meetings as well as its statutory committees. The 
Audit and Risk Committee and the Council's Finance and Remuneration Committee monitor risks and report to 
Council on a quarterly basis. During the year under review, management held four Risk Review workshops which 
were facilitated by the Risk Manager. As part of Risk Management the RIM Executive from time to time requested 
internal auditors to test the museum's internal controls. 

5. Human Resources

RIM continues to face a serious challenge of aligning the museum's strategic plan with the structure, the budget, 
the new Business Model and the Integrated Conservation Management Plan (ICMP). The museum's resource capacity 
is not properly aligned to enable it to deliver on its mandate. Although efforts have been made to strengthen the 
managerial level by appointing staff in line with the 2nd ICMP, it is apparent that an organization-wide restructuring 
should be prioritised for finalisation in 2017/18. The current staff establishment and configuration of departments 
needs to be reviewed in order for the museum to achieve its strategic objectives. 

In order to address this misalignment between the strategy and structure, RIM Council resolved to embark on a 
process of organizational restructuring during the period under review. A service provider was appointed to assist 
RIM in undertaking an objective and transparent review process. The service provider critically reviewed the current 
structure in consultation with Executive team, Senior Managers, and Unit managers. This also included benchmarking 
RIM with similar institutions and conducting a skills audit assessment. The service provider made recommendations, 
which were considered by RIM Council and subsequently approved for implementation. The Executive Management 
Team and the newly appointed is now ceased with the implementation these recommendations. 

During the period under review, RIM would like to report that there is a recognised Union representing workers. 
RIM and the Union have already signed a recognition agreement to govern their relationship, including provisions 
for independent brokering in cases where both parties fail to agree. 

6. Overview of Departmental Performance

The performance objectives and targets of the various departments of RIM are detailed in the Performance Information 
Section of this Annual Report. Performance has increased from 13% (2013/14) to 46% (2014/15) and 58% (2015/2016). 
Performance reports against predetermined objectives demonstrate has significantly improved against targets. This 
is testimonial to the improved management of the institution. Targets not achieved are mainly heritage programmes 
deferred due to lack of adequate funding for their implementation. Performance for the period under review has 
been derailed by inadequate funding and lack of capacity, and the latter is being addressed through the organisational 
review. However, more work is still required to address funding challenges in the core business of the organization. 
Council has prioritized the enhancement of the Robben Island narrative and the enhancement of the visitor experience 
through a plethora of strategies, among them the approved Strategic Research Agenda paying attention to the multi
layered history of Robben Island as a cultural landscape. 

7. Visitor Numbers

The annual visitor numbers for 2015/2016 was 364 021, showing a 12% increase against last year's 325 816. The 
year on year comparison bellow, from 2012 to date, confirms that visitor numbers are showing an upward trend. 
This is directly attributable to the availability of hired vessels that allowed higher numbers of tourists to be taken 
over to the Island per tour. 

• 2012/2013 284 216 
• 2013/2014 305 910 
• 2014/2015 325 816 
• 2015/2016 364 021 

Council has prioritised the need to diversify the museum's sources of revenue instead of relying on ticket sales. 
The Museum has commissioned a Five (5) Year Marketing Strategy whose specific objectives, amongst others, are 
to create an authentic interpretation of the multi-layered world heritage site and to diversify the products of RIM 
in order to ensure continued growth and sustainability through identifying and creating opportunities to expand 
the market base. 
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8. Maintenance of Robben Island

Council and Management are making progress in achieving proper governance arrangements with respect to the 
conservation of infrastructure and facilities on the Island and the mainland. A dedicated Infrastructure and Facilities 
Management structure has been put in place and has been resourced to meet the demands of RIM and to also 
manage relationships with key infrastructure and facilities stakeholders. 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) resumed work on the island from 01 April 2015, on the maintenance of 

infrastructure and bulk services. To achieve this, DPW procured the services of Coega Development Corporation 

(CDC) on the basis of an SLA that will run over a period of four years. This DPW/ CDC SLA has been managed

over the past 13 months by the DAC, DPW, RIM tripartite through Steering, Operations and Technical Committees

that meet regularly to monitor work at different levels.

These structures assist with relationship management and also to resolve any issues arising in the carrying out of 

work. They also assist in making critical and strategic decisions effecting the island and RIM's operations. 

RIM has also leveraged on other partnerships such as that with the Department of Tourism to implement the much 

awaited, Photovoltaic Plant that promises to assist in the quest to reduce the islands over reliance on diesel for 

power generation. Construction on this plant is scheduled to resume in September 2016 and complete still within 

the 2016/17 financial year. It should however be noted that diesel funding for power generation on the island still 

remains a challenge that needs to be resolved with urgency. Diesel for power generation had previously been funded 

by DPW as a result the matter will be resolved via dialogue between DAC and DPW, deciding on where funding 

responsibility lies. In the last financial period (2014/15) and current year (2015/16), DAC has defrayed RIM's obligation 

regarding diesel but has not committed for future years. 

9. World Heritage Site

During the period under review, RIM submitted the State of Conservation (SOC) report to the Department of Environmental 

Affairs (DEA). Considerable progress has been made in implementing both the Recommendations of the UNESCO 

2011 Reactive Monitoring Mission and the 2nd Integrated Conservation Management Plan (ICMP)-refer to the SOC 

annexure for more details. During the period under review, RIM attended all the compliance meetings; Site Managers 

meetings and the South African World Heritage Convention Committee, which are organised by the Department 

of Environmental Affairs. The Chief Heritage Officer (Mr Pascall Taruvinga) was asked by DEA to become a member 

of the latter Committeeduring the course of the year. 

From a programmes perspective, RIM continued efforts to strengthen the delivery and depth of the narrative given 

to all visitors during the tours by reviewing tour guiding materials, training tour guides and monitoring their performance .. 

This area is prioritised for the 2016/17 financial year. On the research front, RIM developed a stakeholder driven 

Strategic Research Agenda (SRA) which is now the cornerstone of research programmes. In addition, two more 

reference group materials were edited to produce DVDs and booklets, adding value to the narrative of the island. 

Mayibuye Archives successfully complied with GRAPl 03 policy framework. Resolving the space and location issue 

of Mayibuye Archives has been prioritised for 2016/17. For Marketing and Tourism, major milestone was securing 

a Rl O million grant for Destination Development from National Department of Tourism. This project, covering the 

establishment of a visitor centre, digitisation of collections, improving visitor experiences and supporting adaptive 

re-use on the island, is earmarked for implementation in 2016/17. 

Also RIM partnered with the African World Heritage Fund (AWHF), a UNESCO Category II Centre in Africa, to host 

the first African Regional Youth Forum (April-May 2016) discussing the relationship between conservation and 

sustainable development. Both institutions have also partnered in developing an Integrated Disaster Risk Plan (IDRP) 

for the site in accordance with the recommendations of the 2nd ICMP. Also, plans are at an advanced stage to sign 

formal agreements with similar African world heritage sites, in particular Goree Island (Senegal) and Le Morne 

Cultural Landscape (Mauritius). As part of capacity building around World Heritage concept, RIM staff attended 

international conferences and training in Disaster Risk Planning held in Namibia. 
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While the implementation of the 2nd ICMP, (see progress report which is annexed to this Annual Report), has 
achieved considerable progress in complying with World Heritage protocols and Operational Guidelines, it remains 
a priority for 2016/17. It is important to report that RIM has not been an agenda item during the last few World 
Heritage Committee sessions. The major challenge in implementing the 2nd ICMP is funding due to inadequate 
allocation and the seasonality of own revenue. RIM Council has noted this matter and has embarked on adaptive 
re-use in order to diversify revenue streams. The Council also continues to approach the Minister of Arts and Culture 
with a view of exploring how the the baseline funding of RIM can be improved to take into account its compliance 
requirements as a world heritage site. 

10. Performance Information

Detailed performance information as required by the PFMA is included elsewhere in detail in the body of the Annual 
Report. 

11. Acknowledgements

I wish to acknowledge the Council of RIM for the role they played in supporting executive management and guiding 
it on a positive growth path. Individually and collectively members of Council carried out their fiduciary responsibilities 
in order to strengthen the fundamental principles of good corporate governance to ensure that RIM achieves an 
unqualified audit opinion. 

A special word of gratitude goes to the personnel of RIM for their dedication to the institution. Their determination 
to assist RIM to achieve its strategic objectives in the face of extreme challenges is a true embodiment of the "Triumph 
of the Human Spirit against adversity". 

The museum would not have managed to survive and strive without the support of its partners in tourism sector, 
especially tour operators and tourism bodies. I echo the chairperson's sentiments in acknowledging the roles played 
by government departments, heritage agencies, the local municipality, local and international universities and the 
private sector. 

Lastly, I wish to thank the Department of Arts and Culture, the National Department of Tourism and the African 
World Heritage Fund for the support given to Robben Island Museum during the period under review. 

Mr Mava Dada 
Chief Executive Officer 
31 July 2016 
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1.6 Statement of responsibility and confirmation of the accuracy of the annual report 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements audited 

by the Auditor General. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National 

Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 

Board which are the standards applicable to the public entity. 

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements 

made in this information. 

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control has been 

designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the 

human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements. 

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 

information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr Mava Dada 
Chief Executive Officer 
31 July 2016 

Mr Sibusiso Blessing Buthelezi 
Chairperson of the Council 
31 July 2016 



1.7 Robben Island Museum in the Spotlight 

Images of the launch of the RIM Google Cultural Institute 
project on Robben Island. 
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The new photo frame installed at Alpha One on Robben Island. This is a very popular site for visitor 
to enjoy the scenic setting as well as a having an opportunity to take a unique photograph. 
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1.8 Strategic overview 

Core Business of Robben Island Museum 
The core business of Robben Island Museum is: 

• To conserve and act as a custodian of the multi-layered tangible and intangible heritage of Robben Island;

• To offer an inclusive, holistic and balanced interpretation of the island to the visitors and showcase many of
its possible experiences; and

• To present a responsible, ethical, environmentally-sensitive and inspirational tourism experience.

Government Department 
Department of Arts and Culture 

Legal form 
The entity is established in accordance with the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998, is a schedule 3A public entity in 
terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999; and is also governed by the National Heritage Resources Act, 
1999. 

Vision 
To develop and promote Robben Island as an inspiring world-class heritage site that symbolizes the triumph of the 

human spirit over adversity and injustice. 

Mission 
The Robben Island Museum vision will be achieved through: 

• Recruiting, retaining and developing the best talent;

• Acquiring and utilizing the best operational resources;

• Responsible conservation and maintenance of the World Heritage Property;

• Healthy stakeholder relations;

• Enhanced marketing and public relations;

• Delivering transformational experiences to all visitors;

• High quality intellectual input in research, interpretation and representation to enhance the narrative;

• Establishment of an Interpretation Centre in order to deliver an effective interpretation of an authentic multi

layered world heritage site.

Values (HEART) 
In order to deliver a service-minded culture which focuses on excellence and quality customer experience, the 

following are RIM's values; 
Honesty 
Excellence 

Accountability 
Respect 
Transparency 
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1.9 Legislative and other mandates 

The mandate and core business of Robben Island Museum is underpinned by the Constitution and other relevant 

legislation and policies applicable to government departments. In addition, Robben Island Museum performs its 

functions in accordance with its Integrated Conservation Management Plan (ICMP), a UNESCO compliance document 

which the museum updates every five years. 

The specific mandate of Robben Island Museum is derived from the following Acts, Policies, Treaties and Conventions: 

• National Heritage Resources Act, 1999

• The Cultural Institutions Act, 1998

• The National Monuments Act, 1969

• The South African World Heritage Convention Act, 1999

• The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and National Treasury Regulations

• The National Environmental Management Act, 1998

• Cape Nature and Environmental Conservation Ordinance, 1974

• Conservation of Agriculture Resources Act, 1983

• Marine Living Resource Act, 1998

• Environment Conservation Act, 1989

• Sea-shore Act, 1935

• National Veld and Forest Fire Act, 1998

• National Water Act, 1998

• The South African Constitution Act 1 08 of 1996

• Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000

• Cultural Institutions Act 119 of 1998

• National Archives of South Africa Act 43 of 1996

• Ships Registration Act 58 of 1998

• Marine Pollution Intervention Act 64 of 1987

• Tourism Act 72 of 1993

• Government Immovable Asset Management Act

• Consumer Protection Act 1 of 2011

• Intellectual Property Laws Amendment Act

• Dumping at Sea Control Act 73 of 1980

• Admiralty Jurisdiction Regulation Act 1983

• Merchant Shipping Act 57 of 1951

• Maritime Zones Act 1 5 of 1 994

• Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002

• Sea Birds and Seals Protection Act 46 of 1973

• International: The World Heritage Convention, 1972

• Basic Conditions of Employment Act No 75 of 1997

• Occupational Health and Safety Act No 85 of 1993

• Use of Official Languages Act, No 12 of 2012
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1.10 Organisational structure 

Executive Officers 
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SM Mkhize 

MC Llale 

PP Taruvinga 

GJ Manana 
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Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Heritage Officer 

Infrastructure and Estates 

High level organisational structure as at 31 March 2016: 
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31 October 2015 

N/A 

N/A 
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Performance Information 



Performance 

2.1 Report on Predetermined Objectives 

The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on performance information to express a conclusion 
on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for selected programmes, and report the 
material findings in the auditor's report. Refer to the report of the Auditor-General. 

2.2 Overview of Robben Island Museum's performance 

This section of the Annual Report provides a detailed overview of Robben Island Museum's (RIM) performance by 
highlighting the activities and involvement in projects, initiatives and partnerships during the 2015/2016 financial 
year, whidi contributed to meeting RIM's strategic objectives as a declared cultural institution and a World Heritage 
Site. The Performance Information Report presents strategic objectives, targets and achievements of RIM's programmes. 

As a public sector entity in the heritage sector, National Treasury has provided prescribed Estimates of National 
Expenditure (ENE) programmes to which spend and objectives have to align. 

Robben Island Museum has at a high-level allocated our departmental activities and budgets as close as possible 
to the ENE guidelines; however, having ferry operations, a tourism element and estates makes RIM unique when 
compared to other museums. 

RIM's allocations of departments to ENE programmes are as follows: 

100•· '"'"' I 11•t1.!..1a,:1111 
.:.. .. .:., 

Business Development Heritage Department 
Ferries Department 
Estates and Infrastructure Department 
Marketing and Tourism Department 

Public Engagement Public Heritage Education Department 

Administration Office of the CEO 
Finance and Supply Chain Department 
Human Resources 

2.3 Strategic outcome orientated goals 

The core business of Robben Island Museum as a heritage institution is outlined in the Integrated Conservation 
Management Plan (ICMP). The Strategic Goals/Objectives from the ICMP guide RIM's Strategic Plan and the APP 
2015/2016: 

.. 

I • Ill f iUal 

Strategic Goal/Objective 1: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 2: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 3: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 4: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 5: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 6: 

Strategic Goal/Objective 7: 

- ...

.. ,,,; IU!..IIM 
.:. 

, . 

Develop RIM as a world-class, sustainable and fully capacitated and motivated WHS 
management institution, which makes use of the full array of appropriate financial and 
operational management and reporting systems. 

Develop a s�portive institutional framework for sustained cooperative governance across
stakeholder ivisions, departments, units and the RIM Executive Office and Council. 

Develop an improved holistic and inte�rated understanding and interpretation of the
RIWHS as an integrated and layered cu tural and natural landscape, including previously 
neglected heritage elements. 
Protect and enhance the Island as a WHS, its overall OUV and all aspects of the multi-
layered cultural and natural landscape, through appropriate and systematic conservation, 
maintenance and protection measures. 

Promote the WHS thro'1h the development of appropriate tourism products and
infrastructure, supporte by a holistic narrative of the multi-layered cultural heritage of 
the Island and sensitive use of the Island's heritage resources. 

Develop pro-active and creative herita
1
e research, interpretation, and critical scholarship

supported by accessible, digitised and inked collections, archives, integrated databases, 
records and information about the Island and its heritage. 
Promote universal access to the Island, and improved outreach and public education to 
all sectors of society, transmitting the core values of the Island as a WHS and National 
Heritage Site. 
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Performance 

2.4 Situational analysis 

Service delivery environment: 
Robben Island Museum (RIM) is a public entity responsible for managing, maintaining, presenting, developing and 
marketing Robben Island as a national estate and World Heritage Site. RIM was established by the Department of 
Arts and Culture in 1997 and is declared as a cultural institution per the Cultural Institutions Act, No 119 of 1998 
and a public entity by the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999. RIM is governed by a Council appointed 
by the Minister of the Department of Arts and Culture with duties prescribed in the Cultural Institutions Act. 

A business model was developed to implement the ICMP 2013 - 2018 and to achieve the Robben Island Museum 
vision and take the organization positively into the future. 

The business model will promote the conservation of the Island in line with the ICMP Strategic Objectives as well 
as deliver more income. 

The model was inspired by an International Study Tour conducted by the RIM Council in September 2013. Council 
members visited World Heritage Sites in East and West Africa. 

The business model is characterised by: 

Providing world-class inspirational customer experiences through upgrading the maintenance of the Island, offering 
more diversified tour offerings (with a ferry every hour), and authentic interpretation of the multi-layered world 
heritage site (inclusive, holistic and balanced). Customers will experience the triumph of the human spirit over 
adversity. 

A focus will be placed on: 
• Professional customer services and quality interaction;

• Efficient public relations;

• Pro-active communication;

• Repeat visits of customers (through varied offerings);

• Maintenance of positive relationships with clients, stakeholders, and suppliers;

• Interactive and effective professional "meet and greet" services will be introduced;

• Professional ticketing and guiding services provided;

• Diversified interpretation built into the product design (e.g. customised tours, light-hearted side of RI);

• Use of technology will be investigated for self guided tours;

• Consistency and availability of the boat service will be improved;

• Media and social media will be used in public relations and marketing and it will be ensured that RIM has
an effective and modern website; and

• Brand ambassadors will be identified and engaged (incl. strategic partnerships to promote RIM).

The result will be more visitors, more diversified tours bought by visitors, more repeat visitors, and visitors prepared 
to pay higher prices for premium services. This will lead to higher income for RIM. Furthermore, sponsorships, events 
and new partnerships will further increase the income. One key high-profile partner will be sought to assist in turning 
the organisation around (e.g. a world renowned corporate such as Google who would strongly identify with the 
RIM history and vision). 

As far as the costs are concerned, certain investments will have to be made in maintenance of the Island, organisational 
refinement, filling key positions, training, marketing, PR, stakeholder relations, new partnerships and better systems. 
This is necessary to improve effective customer services (incl. "meet and greet" services), effective operations 
management, effective ticketing system, effective public relations, diversification tour offering, consistent ferry 
operations, performance management, quality control, and original and applied research for conservation and heritage 
purposes. 
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Most importantly, resources will have to be aligned to deliver according to the demands of the business model. 

This will entail the following: 
• A professional and qualified staff compliment is needed.

• The organisational structure needs to be aligned to the value proposition.

• Human resources need to be effectively utilized.

• Professional tour guiding services must be offered with authentic tour packages / tour offerings.

• The NMG building, Jetty 1 and the Mayibuye Archives (located at UWC) must be effectively utilized.

• An effective operations office

• An effective infrastructure management office

• Effective marketing and public relations office

• Effective heritage and conservation services

• Ferries to provide consistent ferry services

• Assets on the Island properly maintained (e.g. land, flora and fauna, historical buildings and other structures,
collections, and exhibitions).

Additional costs will therefore have to be incurred in the short term - but in the long term these would be more 
than offset by the increased income and increased reputation of RIM that would result from this proposal. 

Adaptive re-use of facilities of Robben Island 
Robben Island Museum issued an Expression of Interest (EOI) to prospective investors on sustainable adaptive reuse 
of Robben Island infrastructure, spaces and facilities in order to improve and diversify product offering to the public 
in line with the 2nd Integrated Conservation Management Plan (2013-2018) and the business model. Adaptive reuse 
is defined as the process of reusing a building (s) for a purpose (s) other than which it was built or designed for 
but without comprising its integrity, significance and the architectural values. RIM is looking for creative proposals 
around the alternative sustainable use of the heritage facilities and landscape on the island. 

The adaptive reuse of Robben Island will take into consideration the 
(i) the legal framework applicable to the site as national heritage and World Heritage site, in particular maintaining

the significance/outstanding universal value, authenticity and integrity of the site as a cultural landscape;

(ii) the need to position RIM as a competitive tourism destination of national and international significance but
creating a synergy with the current and similar activities of RIM;

(iii) the expectations and needs of local communities and visitors to the Island;

(iv) beneficiation framework for local communities, and in particular the ex-political prisoners towards contributing
to national imperatives on socio-economic development; and

(v) the possibility of integrating green technology into the proposed adaptive reuse(s) of the Island and in particular
promoting zero diesel on the island.

Integrated Conservation Management Plan 
Robben Island Museum is a World Heritage Site which creates additional responsibilities for management in terms 
of compliance and reporting on performance, not only to the Department of Arts and Culture, but also to the 
Department of Environmental Affairs and UNESCO. 

The implementation of the ICMP requires dedicated funding and resources to ensure compliance to the World 
Heritage Convention Act, No.49 of 1999. 

Further information on the link between the ICMP and APP can be found below in Part C: Links to the ICMP 2013-
2018. 

During the period 2010 to 2014 RIM was placed on UNESCO's reactive monitoring list and the World Heritage 
Committee Agenda, however, through management interventions RIM has been removed from both the monitoring 
process and as a discussion item on the Agenda. 
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Ferry operating model 
In line with the business model, plans are underway to finalise the implementation of the new Ferry Operating 
Model, which will include the purchase of new ferries. The generation of income from ticket sales to utilise the 
vessel to travel to the Robben Island is a significant source of RIM's income. Thus when RIM hires vessels at a 
higher cost compared to running and maintaining its own vessels it erodes the income base. 

Council and Management will during the current period also review new information regarding the usability of 
the Sikhululekile. 

Infrastructure and built environment 
The Council and Management of RIM has since 2010 identified as an area of concern the inadequate strategic 
alignment between maintenance/capital works projects and the strategy of RIM. 

During 2013-14 RIM took responsibility for the maintenance of the island and aimed to gradually build capacity. 
However, the uncertainty regarding long-term funding for infrastructure, especially the provision of electricity, water 
and waste removal, continued to pose problems and affected the museum's ability to achieve its strategic objectives, 
especially those outlined in the ICMP. RIM is the only museum in South Africa which had to assume the responsibility 
for municipal services. In September 2014, RIM entered into a relationship with the Department of Correctional 
Services, to assist with the maintenance and enhancement of Robben Island's narrative. 

In February 2015 RIM was informed by DAC and DPW Directors General that DPW intends to resume its responsibility 
of facilities maintenance on the island. A Tripartite Agreement outlining the relationship between RIM and the other 
two departments has been concluded. DPW and its implementing agent, Coega Development Corporation, started 
executing the maintenance responsibilities on the Island from the beginning of the second quarter of 2015-16 financial 
year. 

Council has resolved to strengthen RIM's infrastructure management capacity. An Infrastructure and Facilities Management 
Executive was appointed during the 2015-16 financial year. The aim is to ensure that RIM's facilities are maintained 
with a view of supporting the business model and the Adaptive Re-use Project. 

Built environment 
The built environment of Robben Island is an integral attribute of the conveyance of the significance of the multi
layered cultural landscape. This would include all the layers of the history, not only the political era, but all the 
layers of the history including the banishment period, World War 2, etcetera. 

To date the built environment of Robben Island has not been properly maintained to the standard expected on a 
National and World Heritage Site. 

Some of the major challenges experienced include: 
• RIM has no built environment conservation manual;

• Inadequate technical skills to maintain the built environment;

• Difficulty experienced in the maintaining of the supportive municipal services;

• Complexity of ownership in relation to the buildings.

Tour guiding configuration and quality of narrative 
RIM has become aware through market surveys and research that the current tour guiding configuration does not 
provide for the optimum service delivery expectations of the RIM visitors and market. 

Complaints have been received of the quality of the service delivery, inconsistency of narrative, group sizes and 
delays in service. 

RIM has prioritised two specific APP targets which will seek to address the challenges related to tour configuration 
which include the improvement of the narrative and the implementation of a new tour guiding model. 

Matching performance to funding 
RIM receives an annual grant from DAC which only covers a portion of the operational costs. RIM thus has to 
generate a significant portion of revenue to ensure costs are adequately covered for the entire financial year. Due 
to the seasonality of revenue (peak season falls in quarter 3 and 4), projects related to APP targets are sometimes 
deferred until the last quarter when management can determine whether there is sufficient funding to execute on 
the deferred targets. 
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2.5 Organisational environment: 

Governance and leadership 
The RIM Council's term of office will expire at the end of March 2016. RIM reported the matter to the Minister 
of the Department of Arts and Culture. The Minister has responded on 21 October 2015 indicating that DAC is 
in the process of publishing advertisements and calling for nominations of suitable persons to serve on the RIM 
Council. The Minister has requested that the RIM Council should nominate three of its existing members to continue 
with their service as RIM Council members to ensure continuity of governance. RIM has developed an APP target 
in the Office of the CEO which will ensure that the new Council of RIM receives an induction and governance 
workshop in the first quarter of the financial year 2016-2017. 

The term of office of the CEO, Dr. Sibongiseni Mkhize, expired on 31 October 2015. The Council appointed Mr 
Mava Dada, a Council member as acting CEO and subsequently became the current CEO in the first quarter of 
the 2016/17 financial year. 

Employees 
RIM continues to face a serious challenge of aligning the museum's strategic plan with the organisational structure, 
the budget, the business model and the ICMP. 

RIM was required to absorb a significant number of temporary employees into its permanent structure in the 2010/2011 
financial year at the insistence of the Minister of the Department of Arts and Culture in May 2009. 

The absorption of temporary employees without the necessary skills is the foundation of the inefficient and ineffective 
organisation structure which RIM currently has. The current subsidy grant received from DAC is not sufficient to 
cover the employee expenditure of RIM. 

The prevailing business environment is not geared towards the achievement of RIM's strategic goals. The current 
staff establishment and configuration of departments need to be reviewed in order for RIM to achieve its strategic 
objectives. 

The museum's resource capacity is not properly aligned to enable it to deliver on its mandate. Although efforts have 
been made to strengthen the managerial level by appointing staff in line with the business model, it is apparent 
that organisation-wide restructuring is required. Previous years' decisions regarding the suspension of organisational 
restructuring and the absorption of casual and temporary employees has resulted in the misalignment of the organisation, 
with very little attention being given to the core business. 

Council has embarked on a process of organisational restructuring and the project is currently underway. It is 
envisaged that the process would result in an appropriate configuration of RIM, with particular focus to reducing 
employee costs, aligning the structure with strategy, particularly the business model. The organisational re-design 
is scheduled to be implemented during the 2016-17 financial year. 

There have also been significant changes in the Labour Relations Act during the past financial year related to fixed 
term contracts which could impact the operations of RIM. The Council has sought advice on the legislative changes 
from RIM's legal advisors. 

Relationship with Ex-Political Prisoners (EPP's) 
The RIM Council and management recognise the importance of EPPs in the life history of Robben Island and the 
liberation struggle. 

The Council of RIM has prioritised the finalisation of the museum's relationship with structures representing Ex
Political Prisoners. This matter has been the subject of contestation between RIM and its stakeholders. The clarification 
of the relationship will ensure that the museum delivers on its mandate to enhance the narrative and interpretation. 

The RIM Council has had meetings with the Ex-Political Prisoners' Association (EPPA) and the Reference Group 
Sub-Committee in an effort to clearly define the relationship. Council recognises that Robben Island Ex-Political 
Prisoners from South Africa and Namibia are vital to the conservation of the multi-layered heritage of Robben Island. 
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2.6 Key policy developments and legislative changes: 

Policy 
RIM management has identified outdated organisational policies and procedures and has embarked on a project to 
review and update all RIM policies within a three year period which was initiated in November 2014. 

Legislative changes 

It should be noted that the Use of Official Languages Act, No 12 of 2012 will have a possible impact on the organisational 
structure for RIM as a language practitioner and two translators shall be required to implement the Act. 

2.7 Performance information per programme: 
Overall performance: 

During the financial year 2015/2016 RIM had a total of 59 performance targets per the APP. 

The overall performance for RIM was as follows: 

• 34 targets were achieved;
• 10 targets were partially achieved; and
• 15 targets were not achieved.

When performance is compared to 2014/2015 performance 
the following performance improvement can be detected: 

• RIM has achieved 12% more of its targets than the prior
year. In the prior year only 46% of targets were achieved.

Robben Island Museum Overall 

Performance 

Expressed in terms of 

targets 

•Achieved

Partially 

Achieved 

• Not Achieved

Robben Island Museum Overall 

Performance 

Expressed in 

terms of targets 

•Achieved

Partially 

Achieved 

• Not Achieved
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Programmel: Business Development 

The Business Development programme fulfils the following strategic objectives of the ICMP: 3, 4, 5 and 6 by providing 
strategic guidance and allocating resources for the implementation of the ICMP through the Strategic Plan. 

The Business Development programme aims to: 

• Develop an improved holistic and integrated understanding and interpretation of the RIWHS as an integrated
and layered cultural and natural landscape, including previously neglected heritage elements.

• Protect and enhance the integrity of the Island as a WHS, its overall OUV and all aspects of the multi-layered
cultural and natural landscape, through appropriate and systematic conservation, maintenance and protection
measures.

• Promote the WHS through the development of appropriate tourism products and infrastructure, supported by
a holistic narrative of the multi-layered cultural heritage of the Island and sensitive use of the Island's heritage
resources.

• Develop pro-active and creative heritage research, interpretation, and critical scholarship supported by accessible,
digitised and linked collections, archives, integrated databases, records and information about the Island and
its heritage.

The performance for the Business Development Programme was as follows: 

• 20 targets were achieved;
• 6 targets were partially achieved; and
• 12 targets were not achieved.

Programme 1: Business 

Development 

The significant achievements for the programme related to: 

•Achieved

Partially 

Achieved 

• Not Achieved

• A wide variety of marketing campaigns and new tourist experiences were launched, including the Google App
and RIM branded photo frame.

• The MV Sikhululekile was fully certified during the year by SAMSA and Lloyds.
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Sub programme: Heritage Department 

To protect South Planned number of One (1) training Not Achieved A training session on The target has One (1) training 
Africa's cultural training sessions to session on World The training could World Heritage been deferred to session to be 
heritage and conserve be conducted on Heritage only take place once conservation was the following conducted on 
Robben Island as a World Heritage conservation to be the Disaster risk not conducted financial year due World Heritage 
national estate and Conservation. conducted annually. assessment report is during the financial to delays in Conservation. 
World Heritage Site. concluded by the year. appointing the 

service provider. The service provider. 
service provider was 
approved late during 
the financial year 
and thus there was 
a time constraint on 
having the training 
done by 31 March 
2016. 

Development of the Submit the RIM Not Achieved The State of The SOC was Approved Annual 
annual State of annual State of The State of Conservation Report developed and state of 
Conservation report Conservation report Conservation (SOC) for 2015/2016 was presented to conservation 
for submission to DENUNESCO. report was approved only submitted to Council in report. 
DENUNESCO. by Counci I after year the DEA on December 2015 

end. 9/06/2016, after the and February 
RIM Management financial year. 2016, however 
Effectiveness was only signed 
Tracking tool which by the 
measures the State Chairperson after 
of Conservation was year end due to 
submitted to DEA availability of the 
during the financial Chairperson. 
year. 

Maintain Mandatory Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. 1. World Heritage
international and attendance of all SOC meeting Committee and
national links with SOC and all Site initiated by DEA 2. Site Managers
World Heritage Managers forums per held at Cradle of Forum sessions
compliance bodies year initiated by Human Kind as well initiated by 
through attendance DEA. as at Luthuli Department of
of mandatory Museum, attended Environmental
workshops. during the year. Affairs (DEA) to be 

attended annually
by RIM.

Develop and Integrated Disaster Partially Achieved The target could not RIM sought Approved Concept 
implement an Risk Management Inception report be achieved due to services of a for the Integrated 
Integrated Disaster Plan developed by prepared on the capacity constraints. consultant to assist Disaster Risk Plan. 
Risk Management the end of the year. Development of the with the 
Plan for Robben Integrated Disaster achievement of 
Island. Risk Management this target. The 

Plan for RIM. progress with the 
Service provider is 
satisfactory, and 
anticipated 
completion in 
June 2016. 

Obtain number of Submit permit Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Obtaining a permit 
perm its from the applications to SAHRA permits from SAHRA to 
South African SAHRA to perform were obtained perform repairs 
Heritage Resources repairs to the Built during the year for to the Built 
Agency (SAHRA) in Environment as per alternations to Environment. 
accordance with the infrastructure buildings and 
infrastructure plan. plan. repairs. 

Develop and exhibit Develop and exhibit Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Four (4) exhibitions 
a number of new 4 Exhibitions in the Developed and in the Maximum 
exhibitions in F-section of MSP. exhibited 4 Security Prison 
communal cells per exhibitions in F- (MSP) E-section 
annum. section of the developed and 

Maximum Security exhibited. 
Prison. 
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Sub programme: Heritage Department 
- � .... 
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Protection and 
conservation of the 
Robben Island 
facilities and 
Infrastructure to 
ensure the continued 
safeguarding of 
heritage assets 

To manage and 
conserve the 
Mayibuye and 
Robben Island 
heritage collections 
and provide access 
through integrated 
databases 

- ....
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Number of audio
visual products 
(DVDs) produced to 
communicate and 
interpret heritage 
values. 

Number of 
condition 
assessments 
performed of 
exhibitions at 
Robben Island 
Museum 

Events held to raise 
awareness of heritage 
through 
commemorating 
significant days. 

Maintain firebreaks 
and perform 
controlled burn 
projects on Robben 
Island to reduce fire 
risks annually. 

Number of gardens 
and public spaces 
maintained on 
Robben Island per 
annum. 

Maintain sustainable 
populations of fauna 
on Robben Island 
through faunal 
counts and culling 
activities. 

.. 

. 

1 DVD produced for 
F-Section Reference
Group;

2 New DVDs 
produced for ferries. 

Partially Achieved 
1 DVD produced for 
F-Section Reference 
Group.

12 monthly Achieved 
condition 12 monthly 
assessments condition 
performed on all RIM assessments 
exhibitions. performed on all 

RIM exhibitions. 

One (1) event held 
to commemorate 
Heritage Day (24th 
of September). 

Maintain eight (8) fire 
breaks on Robben 
Island; Perform one 
(1) burn project per
year. 

Seven (7) gardens 
and/or public spaces 
maintained during 
the financial year. 

4 faunal counts per 
annum and one 
culling activity per 
month. 

Achieved 
Heritage Day 
celebrations 
conducted. 

Achieved 
Maintained eight fire 
breaks and 
conducted one burn 
project during the 
year on Robben 
Island. 

Achieved 
Twenty eight (28) 
gardens and/or 
public spaces 
maintained during 
the financial year. 

Partially Achieved 
4 faunal counts were 
conducted during 
the year. One culling 
activity per month 
for 11 months. 

Develop a land Land use monitoring Not Achieved 
use/zonation plan for report delivered 
Robben Island annually. 

Review and identify 
most appropriate 
storage facilities for 
moveable I archival 
collections at 
Mayibuye (UWC) 
and Robben Island. 

Requirements and 
specifications 
developed for the site 
which will host the 
Mayibuye and 
Robben Island 
collections. 

The target could not 
be achieved due to 
lack of the carrying 
capacity study, 
which would assist 
in delivering this 
target. The carrying 
capacity study could 
not be completed 
due to capacity 
constraints in the 
department. 

Not Achieved 
The CEO, CHO and 
Executive Manager 
for Infrastructure and 
Facilities 
management 
assessed the 
conditions and the 
Mayibuye facility, as 
well as with the 
UWC rector, to 
discuss various 
options regarding 
the storage facility. 

- .,_
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2 new DVDs for 
ferries were not 
produced during the 
financial year. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Twenty one (21) 
extra gardens were 
maintained during 
the financial year. 

Eleven (11) culling 
activities were 
performed instead of 
12. 

The land use 
monitoring report 
was not completed 
during the financial 
year, as a carrying 
capacity study first 
needed to be 
completed. 

Final decision on the 
storage facilities is 
not yet concluded, 
and further 
investigation is 
required. 

. .. ,,. .. 
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The target could 
not be fully 
achieved due to 
delays in 
procurement of a 
service provider to 
produce Ferries 
DVDs. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

The target has 
been over 
achieved due to 
efficiency in the 
unit. 

Culling activities 
did not occur in 
July due to 

adverse weather. 

The carrying 
capacity study 
could not be 
completed due to 
capacity 
constraints in the 
department. The 
management is 
aware and support 
completion of the 
study. This will 
ensure that site's 
resources are fully 
optimised whilst 
the site remains 
appropriately 
conserved and 
sustainable. 

Due to financial 
and logistical 
constraints a new 
building could not 
be obtained. The 
Infrastructure and 
Estates unit is 
currently busy 
with the 
investigation of 
various options to 
find an ideal 
location for the 
dedicated archive 
facility. 

I•·••• • • 1U:.Jtiil 

One (1) DVD 
produced for E
Section Reference 
Group. 

Forty four (44) 
exhibition 
condition 
assessments to be 
performed by the 
exhibition 
technician during 
the financial year. 

New heritage target 
(previously entire 
target was al located 
to PHED). 

Eight (8) fire breaks 
maintained. 

Seven (7) gardens 
and/or public 
spaces maintained 
during the financial 
year. 

One (1) count of 
fauna on the Island 
to be conducted 
annually. 

Land use/zonation 
plan developed by 
the end of the 
financial year. 

Site feasibility 
studies conducted 
for the storage of 
the Mayibuye 
collections. 
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Performance 

Sub programme: Heritage Department 

Review and Implementation of Partially Achieved The Collections The collections Revise and draft 
implement the collections and GRAP 103 policy Management policy management collections policy 
Collections policy GRAP 103 policy has been was reviewed by policy will be and procedures by 
and GRAP 103 and procedures. implemented and Management but not finalised and work the end of the 
policy and work shopped. yet finalised due to shopped in the financial year. 
procedures. Collections time and capacity following financial 

management policy constraints in the year. 
reviewed and not yet department. The 
finalised. GRAP103 policy has 

been implemented 
and work shopped. 

Number of items 15 OOO items Achieved 6 816 additional Over achievement 15 OOO archival 
processed, digitised and linked 21 816 items items were digitised. of the target relates items digitised and 
documented and to the database for digitised and linked to efficiency in the linked to the 
digitised of the access purposes and to the database for department during database. 
Mayibuye and a selection of the access purposes and the financial year. 
Robben Island items available on a selection of the 
Collections the Mayibuye items available on 

website. the Mayibuye 
website. 

All new collections 
to be assessed and No new collections 
documented and accepted during the 
financial impact of year. 
the acquisition to be 
assessed before being 
accepted as a new 
collection for 
accessioning. 

Manage the loans Number of loan and Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Loans and use 
and use registers of use agreements Number of loan and agreements 
Mayibuye archives completed in full, use agreements have generated to 
for collections by recorded and been completed and manage the loans 
recording loan and reported. recorded in fu II and use of 
use agreements. during the year. Mayibuye 

collections. 

Nominate the Finalising the Partially Achieved SAHRA has The full Draft the 
Mayibuye collections nomination process SAHRA has indicated that they nominations nomination 
to be declared as with SAHRA and indicated that they would like to process is lengthy document which 
National Collections UWC to enable a would like to declare the and due to time will nominate the 
(SAHRA) and to be selection of the declare the Mayibuye constraints could Mayibuye 
recorded on the Mayibuye Mayibuye Collections not be finalised collections for 
UNESCO World Collections to be Collections provisionally as a during the recording on the 
Memory Register. declared as a provisionally as a National Collection, financial year, UNESCO World 

National Collection. National Collection however the process however should Memory Register. 
in order to expedite has not been be finalised during 
an intervention and finalised. the 2016/17 
highlight the financial year. 
urgency of the 
situation and 
faci I itate in the 
process of finding a 
solution regarding 
storage, as the fu II 
nominations process 
is lengthy and due 
to time constraints 
could not be 
finalised during the 
financial year. 

Implement Monitor and update Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Design and 
preventive conservation Monitoring and implement 
conservation programmes based reporting on conservation 
programmes at on selected conservation programmes based 
Mayibuye Archives. collection typology. programs for each on selected 

collection type. collection typology 
for Mayibuye 
Archives. 
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Performance ormation 

Sub programme: Heritage Department 

Maintaining Development and Implement, monitor Partially Achieved The Research Due to time Develop and 
continuous research implementation of a and review the RIM First draft of the agenda has not yet constraints Implement one (1) 

of the Robben Island research agenda. research agenda. Research Agenda been approved by Council could not annual research 
World Heritage Site. report was finalised. Council and approve the agenda which shall 

Endorsement therefore the research agenda include the 
workshop for Research Agenda during the following items. 
stakeholders was could not be financial year, thus 
held to finalise implemented during the Research 
implementation of the year. agenda will be 
the framework for finalised in the 
the Research following year and 
Agenda. implemented 

thereafter. 

Formulation of One (1) academic Not Achieved The academic The target has Formalise nine (9) 
academic partnerships The target could not partnership has not been deferred to academic 
partnerships with formalised and be achieved because been formalised following financial partnerships. 
universities and maintained. it is dependent upon during the financial year, when the 
colleges to promote the Research year. Research Agenda 
research at RIM. agenda, which has will be finalised. 

not yet been 
finalised. 

Erect a memorial in Engagement with Not Achieved No engagement The target has Development of a 
honour of all political DAC to explore a Target not achieved, with DAC was been deferred to concept document 
prisoners and people funding relationship the research projects undergone during the following as informed by 
banished on the in relation to the are linked to the the financial year in financial year, stakeholders for the 
Island. erection of the implementation of relation to erection when the erection of a 

memorial. the strategic research of the memorial. Research Agenda memorial in 
agenda and the will be finalised. honour of all 
process has not been political prisoners 
finalised. and people 

banished to 
Robben Island 

Continuous Annual update of Verification and Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. 14767 boxes 
enhancement of the heritage asset update of the Annual verification (Historical Papers 
Robben Island World database. heritage asset register report of Heritage collection) to be 
Heritage Site through annually. assets performed. recorded annually. 
appropriate and 
systematic 
conservation, 
maintenance and 
protection measures. 



Performance 

Sub programme: Ferries Department 

Promote increased Dispose vessel which Prepare the MV Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. New target, not 
access with is not suited to the Sikhululekile to be Sikhululekile vessel measured in prior 
consistent, flexible delivery of a flexible operational and was fully certified year. 
and reliable transport and reliable transport compliant with during the year and 
to Robben Island system. SAMSA and Lloyds SAMSA and Lloyd 
through the effective regulations, in order regulations have 
and efficient to enable the been obtained. 
functioning and disposal of the vessel 
maintenance of the in a working and 
ferry operations. saleable condition. 

Acquire a vessel Prepare new vessel Not Achieved Initially Due to lack of New target, not 
which is suited to the specifications to Phase 1 of Boat specifications were adequate measured in prior 
delivery of a flexible enable SCM Building has started. drafting to purchase responses from the year. 
and reliable transport processes to acquire Drawing up of the a vessel, however first tender 
system. vessel building specification is in insufficient process, a second 

services. progress. Delay in responses were process had to be 
completion of the received. A project embarked on 
target is due to the management creating a delay. 
initial tender not company was Vessel 
yielding appropriate subsequently specifications 
resu Its, resulting in appointed to draft were thus 
a tender for a project detailed completed by 
management specifications to 65igma on 20 
company to assist rather bu i Id a May 2016, after 
RIM with suitable vessel. financial year end. 
specifications to These specifications 
build a vessel. were not finalised by 

year end. 

Commission an Perform feasibility Not Achieved No feasibility study Th is target has New target, not 
existing vessel which study on the cost Target not achieved. was performed been deferred to measured in prior 
will assist with the versus benefit of during the year as next year 2016- year. 
delivery of a flexible restoring and boat building took 2017. Robben 
and reliable transport commissioning an preference. Island has taken 
system. existing vessel MV a decision to 

Penguijn and present concentrate on the 
options to Council. Boat Building for 

this financial year 
due to lack of 
resources. The 
disposal will take 
place next 
financial year. 

Development and Draft a foundation Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Develop and 
implementation of a maintenance plan for Maintenance plans implement a ferries 
ferries maintenance all RIM owned for all RIM owned maintenance plan. 
plan. vessels. vessels prepared. 

Compliance to Receive SAMSA Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. New target, not 
SAMSA regulations certificates of All certificates measured in prior 
to ensure efficiency compliance for each received for all RIM year. 
and effective of the RIM owned owned vessels. 
functioning of ferry vessels per annum. 
operations. 
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Performance 

Sub programme: Infrastructure & Estates 

Protection and Install the Murray Finalise the Not Achieved The concept Funding to One (1) harbour 
conservation of the Harbour safety installation of the A concept document for implement the safety exhibition 
Robben Island infrastructure on the Harbour safety document for the harbour safety was works will be developed and 
facilities and Island. infrastructure at development of the approved, however available in the exhibited by the 
Infrastructure to Murray's Harbour, Murray Harbour there was no funding 2016/2017 end of the financial 
ensure the continued Robben Island. safety infrastructure available to financial year. year. 
safeguarding of was developed and implement. 
heritage assets. approved during the 

year, however no 
funding was 
available. 

Development and Implementation, Not Achieved RIM no longer From Quarter 2 One (1) 
Implementation of monitoring and Project progress performs function of onwards, DPW is Infrastructure 
the infrastructure review of reports indicating Facilities now maintenance 
maintenance Infrastructure progress on maintenance, thus implementing the programme/plan to 
programme I plan. maintenance maintenance could not review the maintenance be developed and 

programme/ plan. submissions was maintenance function under the implemented by 
completed for Quarter programme from supervision of financial year end. 
1 only, thereafter DPW quarter 2 onwards. DAC, thus RIM 
took over the management was 
maintenance function no longer 
and reporting became responsible for the 
void. target. 

Develop an Integrated waste Achieved Not Applicable. Not Applicable. Integrated waste 
Integrated waste management system Document on management 
management system developed. Integrated waste system developed. 
for Robben Island. management system 

for Robben Island 
has been prepared. 

Sub programme: Marketing & Tourism 

Promotion of Robben Development, Develop an Not Achieved Due to capacity RIM is in the Develop an 
Island Museum as a approval and approved marketing Target not achieved. constraints a process of approved 
local and implementation of plan. marketing plan was outsourcing this marketing plan. 
international World the Robben Island not developed function to a 
Heritage Site. Museum marketing during the year. service provider as 

plan. there is limited 
capacity for the 
full 
implementation of 
this target. 

Number of marketing Two (2) marketing Achieved The annual target is Over achievement Twelve marketing 
campaigns launched. campaigns launched Six (6) marketing for two marketing of the target was projects launched 

per year. campaigns were campaigns to be due to efficiencies for the financial 
launched during the launched, however in the department. year. 
year. the actual 

achievement is 6 
Marketing 
campaigns. 

Promoting access to Reduce the number Reduce number of Not Achieved Customer The tour Achieving 75% 
Robben Island World of customer customer complaints Due to the volume complaints experience will be positive customer 
Heritage Site and complaints using by 25% from the of tourist taken to the increased from the reviewed and ratings (the number 
improving customer customer complaint number of Island, compared to prior year. improved upon of complaints 
satisfaction by database. complaints in the the previous during the next received in 
providing a relevant prior year. financial year, it financial year, 2014/2015 will 
and unique resulted in a further an online form the baseline 
experience. proportionate system wi II be for 2015/2016 

increase in implemented to onwards). 
complaints. enhance the 

information 
regarding 
complaints. 
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Performance ormation 

Sub programme: Marketing & Tourism 

Percentage (%) A 5% annual Achieved Visitor numbers Over achievement A 30% annual 
increase in the increase of paying A 12% annual increased by an of the target is due increase of visitors 
number of visitors to visitors based on the increase of paying additional 7%. to the availability based on the 
the Robben Island prior year RIM visitor visitors from prior of hi red boats that 2013/2014 final 
Museum. numbers. year as per visitor were able to take annual visitor 

stats. more tourists to count. 
the island at any 
given time. 

To diversify the Number of new Five new tourist Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. No baseline target, 
products of the tourist experiences experiences A total of five (5) new target 
Robben Island (products) (products) developed new tourist introduced from 
Museum in order to introduced. and implemented for experiences were 2015/2016. 
ensure continued the year. organised and 
growth and executed for the 
sustainability through year. 
identifying and 
creating opportunities 
to expand the market 
base. 

Promotion of the Number of regular Twelve (12) monthly Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Twelve (12) update 
Robben Island updates are updates performed Twelve monthly reports for changes 
museum through performed of the RIM on the website updates performed made to the 
various media to the Website with annually. on the website website generated. 
local and relevant information during the year. 
international public. and events per 

annum. 

Number of published Publishing of twelve Achieved The annual target is Over achievement Publishing of 
advertorials or (12) print or video Published 21 for 12 materials to of the target twelve (12) 
articles to promote materials to promote materials to promote be published, occurred due to advertorials / 
Robben Island Robben Island Robben Island for however the actual efficiencies in the articles on Robben 
Museum per annum. Museum per annum. the year. achievement is 21 department. Island Museum. 

materials published. 

Programme 2: Public Engagement 

The Public Engagement programmes include the targets of the Public Heritage Education Department. 

The programme aims to: 

• To diversify the products of the Robben Island Museum in order to ensure continued growth and sustainability
through identifying and creating opportunities to expand the market base.

• Provide academic scholarship, research and training through post graduate programme.

The performance for Programme 2: Public Engagement was as follows: 

• 7 targets were achieved;

• 1 target was partially achieved; and

• 1 target was not achieved.

Programme 2: Public Engagement 

•Achieved

Partially 
Achieved 

• Not achieved

Expressed in terms of targets 



Performance ormation 

The significant achievements for the programme related to: 

• The 8 APMHS programme students, that were funded by RIM, graduated.

Sub programme: Public Heritage Education 

To diversify the 
products of the 
Robben Island 
Museum in order to 
ensure continued 
growth and 
sustainability through 
identifying and 
creating opportunities 
to expand the market 
base. 

Provided academic 
scholarship, research 
and training through 
post graduate 
programme. 

- ....
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Train RIM Tour 
Guides for the 
Robben Island 
Museum tour. 

To raise awareness of 
heritage education 
through 
commemoration of 
significant days. 

Update Robben 
Island Museum 
educational material. 

Establish educational 
exchange 
programmes with 
other museums. 

Increase the number 
of school learners 
visiting and utilising 
RIM educational 
programmes. 

Increase the number 
of adult learners 
visiting RIM and 
utilising RIM 
education 
programmes. 

To curate heritage 
scholarship through 
the funding and 
academic support of 
the APHMS 
programme. 

To facilitate a 
platform for critical 
debates, public 
seminars, 
symposiums and 
workshops annually. 

Perform academic 
research and 
publication during 
the year. 

. .

. 

Refresher course on 
Tour Guiding which 
includes all updated 
information to the 
Tour Guiding 
Training Manual. 

Two (2) seminars or 
workshops held to 
commemorate 
significant days. 
March 21, Human 
Rights Day and June 
16, Youth Day). 

Develop one 
educational material 
concept document 
per annum. 

Implement one 
educational 
exchange 
programme with 
another museum in 
Cape Town. 

6 OOO school learners 
visiting and making 
use of RIM 
educational 
programmes. 

500 adult learners 
visiting and making 
use of RIM 
educational 
programmes. 

7 students funded by 
RIM for the APMHS 
programme to 
graduate annually. 

4 academic seminars 
and 1 annual 
colloquium 
combined with and 
exhibition. 

Two (2) publications 
per annum, one 
consolidated APMHS 
publication and one 
other topical 
publication per year. 

Achieved 
Refresher course on 
tour guiding 
conducted during 
the year. 

Achieved 
Two Seminars held 
to commemorate 
Human Rights day 
on 21 March and 
Youth Day on 1 6 
June. 

Achieved 
Educational material 
concept document 
on Apple boxes 
developed during 
the year. 
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Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

... ,� 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. 
Educational 
exchange 
programme took 
place between RIM 
and the Holocaust 
Centre. 

Achieved 
6783 school learners 
visited the Island 
making use of RIM 
educational 
programmes during 
the year. 

Partially Achieved 
441 adult learners 
visited the Island 
and made use of 
RIM educational 
programmes during 
the year. 

Achieved 
All students funded 
by RIM for the 
APMHS programme 
graduated. 

Achieved 
5 academic 
seminars conducted 
and 1 colloquium 
took place during 
the year. 

Not Achieved 
5 articles for 1 
publication collated, 
edited and 
submitted. Terms of 
reference and 
invitation letters to 
editorial committee 
submitted. 

The actual 
achievement is 783 
students over the 
target that made use 
of RIM's educational 
programs. 

The target of 500 
adult learners could 
not be reached due 
to a lower demand 
than anticipated for 
this program by 
adult learners. 

Not applicable. 

An extra seminar 
was held during the 
financial year. 

First publication 
awaiting approval. 
Amendments and 
request to establish 
an editorial 
committee was 
made for the second 
publication. Delay 
in publications relate 
to capacity 
constraint in the 
Public Education 
Department. 

The over 
achievement is 
due to greater 
demand than 
anticipated by the 
schools. 

The program will 
be better marketed 
to the public to 
ensure that 
sufficient demand 
takes place. 

Not applicable. 

Over achievement 
of the target is due 
to efficiency in the 
department. 

Editorial 
committee will be 
established in the 
following financial 
year to lend 
credence to the 
substance of the 
articles used for 
the publications. 
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1 00% of Robben 
Island Museum 
tour guides 
received accredited 
training. 

Two (2) seminars or 
workshops held to 
commemorate 
significant days. 

New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

13 students, 2 
Graduate research 
Fellows registered 
with UWC. 

11 seminars, 1 
annual colloquium, 
1 exhibition hosted 
by RIM. 

4 publications. 



Performance ormation 

Programme 3: Administration 

The Administration programmes include the targets of the Office of the CEO, Finance, Supply Chain Management 
and Human Resources Department. 

The Administration programme aims to: 

• Align heritage management to global good practices and theoretical developments;
• To ensure the effective and efficient Strategic management and compliance to relevant legislation.

The performance for Programme 3: Administration was as follows: 

• 7 targets were achieved;
• 3 targets were partially achieved; and
• 2 targets were not achieved.

The significant achievements for the programme related to: 

Programme 3: Administration 

•Achieved

Partially 
Achieved 

• Not Achieved

• The evaluation of the RIM financial position, compliance with quarterly financial reporting requirements and the
development of an approved SCM policy which contributed towards RIM being developed as a sustainable and
fully capacitated World Heritage Site, which makes use of effective internal controls and financial and operating
systems.

• RIM Council and Executive attending an annual governance workshop which contributed to the effective and
efficient strategic management and compliance to relevant legislation.

Sub programme: Office of the CEO 

To ensure the effective Review, workshop Update the Council Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Six (6) reviewed 
and efficient Strategic and approval of and Sub-committee Council and Sub- Council committee 
management and committees' charters charters as require by Committee charters charters. 
compliance to and approved new legislation updated as required 
relevant legislation. delegated functions. introduce or new by new legislation 

business and new business 
developments. developments. 

The Council and The Council and Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Attend one (1) 
Executive to attend Executive to attend Governance governance 
an annual one (1) governance workshop held on workshop. 
Governance workshop per year. 29 January 2016 
Workshop. attended by 

Council. 

Review current and Develop and Monitor MoU's on Achieved Not applicable. Not applicable. Monitor and 
establish new formal maintain a database the database and MoU database was maintain all current 
partnerships between of all RIM's MoU's arrange one prepared indicating service level 
Robben Island with outside stakeholder nature and agreements with 
Museum and stakeholders. workshop per measurement of stakeholders for 
stakeholders. annum. relationships with which MoU's exist 

RIM. at 1 April 2014. 
Stakeholder 
engagement 
workshop was 
hosted during the 
year. 



Performance 

Sub programme: Office of the CEO 

To ensure the effective Protection of the RIM Investigate all Achieved 
and efficient Strategic brand and instances of possible Possible 
management and Intellectual Property IP transgressions infringement during 
compliance to through reported and the second quarter 
relevant legislation. investigations of document the was detected by the 

infringements. solution per case. company attorneys 
and investigated. No 
IP infringements 
were reported in 
first, third and fourth 
quarters. 

To ensure the effective Effective and efficient Restructure Robben Partially Achieved 
and efficient Strategic use of RIM's human Island Museum's The consultant 
management and resources through employees to enable presented the final 
compliance to restructuring of the an effective and organisation 
relevant legislation. organisation. efficient utilisation of structure to RIM 

employees. council. 

Conduct a quarterly Conduct a quarterly Achieved 
risk workshop to risk management Risk management 
identify emerging workshop to be workshops 
risks and to manage attended by senior conducted for all 
current risks. managers. four quarters. 

Sub programme: Finance & SCM 

Monitoring of Evaluation of Submission of a Achieved 
sustainability of RIM sustainability of quarterly Quarterly 
functional areas functional units on sustainability report sustainability report 
through using a quarterly basis. to executive submitted to 
financial reporting commenting on executive 
systems. sustainability of commenting on 

RIM's operations. sustainability of 
RIM's operations. 

Ensuring sustainable Development and Annual review and Achieved 
acquisitions of goods implementation of a update of Supply Achieved 
and services in Supply Chain Chain Management Supply Chain Policy 
compliance with Management policy policy. have been reviewed 
regulations. specific to the needs to incorporate any 

of the Robben Island changes from 
Museum. National Treasury. 

Not applicable. 

The consultant 
presented the final 
organisational 
structure to RIM 
Council. The next 
phase of the process 
is to implement the 
structure. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

Delay in the New target, not 
process is due to measured in prior 
the sensitivity year. 
attached to 
restructuring and 
the need to perfect 
the proposed 
structure 
Implementation of 
the proposed 
structure to take 
place in the 
2016/2017 
financial year. 

Not applicable. New target, not 
measured in prior 
year. 

Not applicable. Submission of a 
quarterly 
sustainability report 
to executive 
commenting on 
sustainability of 
RIM's operations. 

Not applicable. An approved 
Supply Chain 
Management 
Policy System in 
terms of section 51 
(1) (a) (iii) of the
Public Finance
Management Act
reviewed and
developed to keep
abreast of new
legislative and
policy
requirements in
place by 31 March 
2015.
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Performance 

Sub programme: Human Resources 

To maintain the Develop and Monitor and review Partially Achieved The Performance Delay in Develop and 
Robben Island implement a the Performance H R department Management system completing the implement a 
Museum as a world- performance management system. received 98% of the has not been fully target is due to performance 
class, sustainable and management system employee's implemented with restructuring management 
fully capacitated and implemented in performance all employees, as it taking preference. system. 
motivated WHS accordance with agreements and is the first year of The performance 
management relevant legislation. these agreements are implementation, management 
institution. currently being monitoring of the system wi II be 

reviewed for the system will occur reviewed in its 
2015/16 year by the after the 2015/16 entirety in the 
respective managers. year end. 2016/1 7 year. 

Percentage (%) of 98% of all Partially Achieved All employees of The restructuring 100% of all 
employees with employees have All employees of RIM with the process took employees have 
performance signed performance RIM with the exception of precedence to signed 
management management exception of Executives have performance performance 
contracts. contracts. Executives have signed their management and management 

signed their performance lack of a clear contracts. 
performance contracts. policy on 
contracts. All new employees performance 
All new employees have signed their management led 
have signed their performance to confusion. 
performance contracts during the 
contracts during the year. 
year. Delay in 
completing the 
target is due to 
restructuring taking 
preference. 

Perform annual skills Implement findings Not Achieved The target could not The Structure will Perform annual 
audit on from organisational Delay in the process be achieved as the be implemented skills audit. 
competencies of all restructuring findings is due to the restructuring process during the next 
employees. and implement sensitivity attached has not yet been financial year, 

training plan. to restructuring and concluded. once the 
the need to perfect restructuring 
the proposed process has been 
structure. concluded. 

To maintain the Conduct a bi-annual Conduct two (2) staff Not Achieved The target could not A local tertiary Conduct four (4) 
values of the Robben staff satisfaction satisfaction surveys Target not achieved. be achieved institution will be staff satisfaction 
Island Museum survey annually. Delay in completing because contacted to assist surveys annually. 

the target is due to restructuring took in conducting the 
restructuring taking precedence over survey in the 
preference. other HR matters 2016/17 financial 

and as such no year. 
survey's were 
completed. 

2.8 Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance: 

RIM has faced the following high-level challenges which have had an impact on performance during the financial 
year: 

• Infrastructure and bulk services funding uncertainty;
• Ferry operation challenges with vessels;
• Inappropriate organisational structure to execute targets successfully;

The following mitigating actions are currently being implemented to overcome areas of historical under-performance: 
• During the second quarter of the financial year, DPW returned as a service provider to maintain the infrastructure

on Robben Island and to provide bulk services. DAC, DPW and RIM created a tripartite agreement to ensure
that Robben Island is maintained and conserved as a World Heritage Site. DPW has appointed Coega Development
Corporation to execute the maintenance responsibilities .

• RIM is in the process of finalising specifications for a new commercial ferry. The MV Sikhululekile has been
successfully brought back into operation at the end of the financial year.

• RIM has identified a service provider which will assist RIM in a restructuring process during 2015/2016 to align
the organisational structure to the strategic objectives of the entity. The proposed structure will be implemented
during the 2016/2017 financial year.
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Performance 

2.9 Linkage performance with budgets: 

EXPENDITURE FOR PROGRAMMES R R R R 

Personnel -81 763 925 -78 196 308 -77 978 131 218 177 

Depreciation and amortisation -4 391 243 -4 391 243 -6 265 417 -1 874 174

Finance costs -325 384 -325 384

Debt impairment 0 

General Expenses -106 335 808 -115 315 523 -112 807 504 2 508 019 

Total expenditure -192 490 976 -197 903 074 -197 376 436 526 638 

Expenditure is mainly made up of General Expenses, followed closely by Personnel costs and the difference consists 
of the annual Depreciation and Amortisation. 

The Over expenditure of Depreciation and Amortisation mostly relates to the reassessment of useful lives of assets. 

Revenue collection: 

- .. -
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REVENUE 

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE 

Sale of goods 

Rendering of services 

Rental of facilities and equipment 

Other income 

Recoveries 

Finance income 

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE 

TRANSACTIONS 

TAXATION REVENUE 

Government grants and subsidies 

Total revenue 
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2 828 205 

86 676 165 

1 557 585 

1 219 375 
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4 945 816 

97 227146 
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165 646 146 
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2 828 205 3 072 771 +244 566

97 451 060 104 178 828 +6 727 768

1 557 585 1 519 951 -36 634

4 917 130 7 881366 +2 964 236

- 78 784 +78 784

7 378 158 7 438 620 +60 462

114132138 124170 320 +10 038 182

81 454 641 84 969 385 +3 514 744

195 586 779 209139 705 +13 552 926

Revenue is mainly made up of Rendering of Services which is the Net Ticket Sales of Visitors to the Island and 
the Government Grants and Subsidies which is the unconditional and conditional grants received from the Department 
of Arts and Culture. 

Both of these line items show an over collection due to: 
• the aggressive scheduling of tours during the high demand periods along with increased ticket prices; and

• the recognition of the conditional ICMP and Infrastructure Grants and the receipt of unconditional grants related
to infrastructure.

Sale of Goods, Rental of Facilities and Equipment and Other Income makes up all the other income generating 
services offered by the Robben Island Museum and the balance of Total Revenue is the Finance Income earned 
on the favourable bank balances maintained throughout the year. 
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3.1 Introduction 

Parliament, the Department of Arts and Culture, the Council and the Executive of Robben Island Museum are 
responsible for corporate governance. 

Governance of Robben Island Museum is guided by the Cultural Institutions Act of 1998, the Public Finance 
Management Act of 1999, the King Report on Governance for South Africa 2009 ("King 111") and the World Heritage 
Convention Act. 

3.2 The Council 

The Robben Island Museum is the Accounting Authority. The Council provides strategic direction and is accountable 
for the performance of Robben Island Museum. 

The responsibilities of the Council are as follows: 
• exercise leadership, enterprise, integrity and judgment in directing RIM so as to achieve its objectives and at

all times to act in the best interests of RIM in a manner based on transparency, independence, accountability,
fairness and responsibility;

• ensure the effective use of all the resources of RIM;

• be the vehicle of last resort for complainants both internal and external to RIM;

• continually monitor the exercise of delegated power by management and ensure that effective goal-setting and
programme monitoring is undertaken by management and communicated regularly to the Council;

• set in place mechanisms to monitor and manage all risks to RIM; to review these risks regularly and to take
the necessary steps to contain and alleviate such risks;

• advise on significant financial matters and to ensure that full accountability for all financial matters is undertaken
by management;

• ensure that a comprehensive system of policies and procedures is in place and that appropriate governance
structures exist to ensure the smooth, efficient and prudent stewardship of the Company;

• exercise objective judgment on the business affairs of RIM, independent from management but with sufficient
management information to enable a proper and informed assessment to be made;

• identify and monitor non-financial aspects relevant to RIM and ensure that RIM acts responsibly towards all
relevant stakeholders of the Company; and

• ensure compliance by RIM with all relevant laws and regulations, audit and accounting principles and such
other principles as may be established by the Board from time to time.

Composition of the Council 
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SB Buthelezi 

R Abdullah 

S Webster 

MDada 

MS Gwavu 

GM Masuku 

SA Mogoba 

L Mpahlwa 

P Nefolovhodwe 

OB Nqubelani 

Chairperson 

Deputy Chairperson 

Member 
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Council Charter and Sub-Committee Charters 
A Council Charter and Charters for the Council Sub-Committees have been developed and approved during the 
2015-2016 financial year. 

The governance structure is constructed as follows: 

.,.__n 
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Audit and Risk T Mosololi (Independent) 

Committee T Ntshiza (Independent) 

J Laubscher(lndependent) 

M Dada 

P Nefolovhodwe 

Finance and P Nefolovhodwe 

Remuneration M Gwavu 

Committee M Dada 

L Mpahlwa (By invitation) 

HR, Governance, R Abdullah 

Ethics and Integrity 0 Nqubelani 

Committee M Gwavu 

S Webster 

P Nefolovhodwe 

Heritage, Education, L Mpahlwa 

Marketing and Tourism R Abdullah 

Committee S Webster 

G Masuku 

M Gwavu 

Meeting attendance 
Members of Council are required to attend full Council meetings and to attend the meetings of the Council Sub
committees to which they have been appointed. 
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Number of Number of 
meetings held meetings attended 

SB Buthelezi 9 9 

R Abdullah 9 4 

S Webster 9 9 

MDada 9 9 

MS Gwavu 9 9 

GM Masuku 9 8 

SA Mogoba 9 0 

L Mpahlwa 9 9 

P Nefolovhodwe 9 9 

OB Nqubelani 9 4 



Number of Number of 
meetings held meetings attended 

MDada 4 4 

P Nefolovhodwe 4 4 

T Mosololi (Independent) 4 4 

T Ntshiza (Independent) 4 3 

J Laubscher (Independent) 4 3 

Number of Number of 
meetings held meetings attended 

P Nefolovhodwe 4 4 

MS Gwavu 4 3 

MDada 4 4 

L Mpahlwa 4 1 

Number of Number of 
meetings held meetings attended 

R Abdullah 5 

L Mpahlwa 5 4 

S Webster 5 4 

GM Masuku 5 3 

MS Gwavu 5 4 

Number of Number of 
meetings held meetings attended 

R Abdullah 7 2 

OB Nqubelani 7 5 

M Gwavu 7 7 

P Nefolovhodwe 7 7 

S Webster 7 4 

Remuneration of board members 

The remuneration of Council members is disclosed as per Note 29 of the Annual Financial Statements. 
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3.3 Risk Management 

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999 as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999) requires Robben 
Island Museum to ensure it has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management. 

Executive and senior management engaged with the Senior Manager Risk and Internal Audit to document RIM's 
risks to achieving its strategic objectives. 

RIM is also in the process of developing departmental risk registers including mitigating actions to be taken to reduce 
risk to acceptable levels. 

3.4 Internal Audit Unit 

SizweNtsalubaGobodo (SNG) was appointed as the internal auditors in August 2013 for a period of three years. 
A risk-based three-year and one-year Internal Audit Plan was considered and adopted by the Audit Committee on 
22 November 2013. 

SNG performed the following engagements during the year and delivered reports with findings and recommendations 
for improvements: 

1. Pre-determined Objectives Review
2. Technical AFS Review
3. Asset Management Review
4. SCM Limited Scope Review
5. SCM Full Scope Review
6. Heritage Assets Limited Scope Review

3.5 Compliance with laws and regulations 

Robben Island Museum as a World Heritage Site has a significant amount of laws and regulations to comply with. 

RIM has developed a number of policies and regulations in order to ensure compliance. The policies are reviewed 
regularly and where necessary, new policies are developed. RIM endeavours to adhere to the PFMA, Cultural 
Institutions Act, Treasury Regulations, Supply Chain Practise Notes and other relevant prescripts. 

3.6 Fraud and corruption 

Robben Island Museum management actively participates in the Department of Arts and Culture Fraud Awareness 
Campaigns and the Whistle-blowing Fraud and Corruption Hotline posters are visible in the entity's buildings. 
Employees are encouraged to report any instances of suspected fraud or corruption. 

Fraud Prevention Strategy and Fraud Prevention Policies where developed and approved by Council during the year. 

3.7 Minimising conflict of interest 

Procurement 

According to National Treasury Practise Note Number 7 of 2009/2010, accounting officers and accounting authorities 
are required to utilize the attached revised SBD 4 when inviting price quotations, advertised competitive bids, limited 
bids or proposals. This SBD 4 should be used with minimum changes that are necessary to address contract and 
project specific issues. 



In terms of the National Treasury Regulations, if a supply chain management official or other role player, or any 
close family member, partner or associate of such official or other role player, has any private or business interest 
in any contract to be awarded, that official or other role-player must -

(a) disclose that interest; and
(b) withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in the process relating to that contract.

According to the Code of Conduct for Bid Adjudication Committees, all members as well as the secretary of Bid 
Adjudication Committees, (including Bid Evaluation Committee and Bid Specification Committee members) should 
be cleared at the level of - "Confidential" by the accounting officer / authority and should be required to declare 
their financial interest annually. Each member as well as all officials rendering administrative support must sign a 
declaration form at each Bid Adjudication Committee meeting. 

Employees 

Employees are required to annually disclose their financial interests which are reviewed to identify any instances 
of conflict of interest. 

3.8 Code of Conduct 

The Robben Island Museum Code of Good Conduct is a guideline which is intended to formalise Robben Island 
Museum's approach to addressing misconduct and poor work performance and creating sound employee relations. 

3.9 Health, Safety and Environmental matters 

Health and Safety 

Robben Island Museum has a dedicated Health and Safety Officer and a Health and Safety Committee. 

Robben Island Museum has approximately 45 employees which were trained in first aid to ensure that visitors and 
employees are attended to in case of an emergency. Furthermore medical facilities with a dedicated medical team 
are available on Robben Island. 

Environmental matters 

Robben Island Museum has entered into strategic partnerships with academic and government institutions to ensure 
compliance with environmental legislative framework and assist with the site environmental monitoring. 

Partnership with the University of Cape Town, Earthwatch, SANCCOB and Department of Environmental Affairs is 
important for close monitoring of avifauna on Robben Island, particularly threatened species i.e. African penguins. 

Stellenbosch University Department of Conservation Ecology, in partnership with Robben Island Museum, focuses 
on environmental monitoring, particularly vegetation assessment and entomology. 

RIM has mitigated fire hazards on the site through ongoing controlled burn projects that are annually conducted 
in partnership with the City of Cape Town's Fire and Rescue and Biodiversity Units. 

Illegal harvesting of marine living resources around the site buffer zone has been a major concern. RIM has recently 
improved its buffering mechanism through a formal partnership with the Department of Agriculture Forestry and 
Fisheries' Monitoring, Control and Surveillance Chief Directorate, which ensures compliance and prevents illegal 
activities within the buffer zone. 
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3.10 Company Secretary 

Statucor (Pty) Ltd was appointed as the new Company Secretary on 30 May 2014 for a period of 2 years, their 
contract was extended by Council for an additional year. 

3.11 Social Responsibility 

lnternships 

Robben Island Museum facilitates internships to assist interns in gaining valuable work experience. 

During the year 2015/2016, thirteen interns developed new skills by assisting in the Finance Department, Heritage 
Department and Marketing and Tourism Department. 

Concession and complimentary tickets: 

Robben Island Museum annually makes concession and complimentary tickets available to: 
• Academic institutions;
• Schools,
• Adult educational groups,
• Cultural and social stakeholders; and
• Ex-political prisoners;

During 2015/2016 Robben Island Museum made a total of 7 592 concession and complimentary tickets available 
which promotes educational and social responsibility initiatives. 

3.12 Implementation of the Integrated Conservation Management Plan (2013 - 2018) 

Implementation of the Integrated Conservation Management Plan (2013 - 2018): 

Robben Island Museum has an entity mandate which supports the implementation of the 2nd Integrated Conservation 
Management Plan (ICMP) which is required when operating a World Heritage Site. 

The ICMP contains the following sections: 
(i) Operational Management Plan,
(ii) Interpretation Plan,
(iii) Visitor Management Plan,
(iv) Natural Environment Management Plan, and
(v) Implementation Plan.

This is in line with the 1972 World Heritage Convention and the South African World Heritage Convention Act 
of 1999. The ICMP (2013 - 2018) informs the Strategic Plan (2013 - 2018) and the Annual Performance Plans 
commencing 2015/16. 

The Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA) provided confirmation on 17 June 2014 that the Robben Island 
Museum ICMP has been submitted in compliance with Chapter IV, section 25(1) of the World Heritage Convention 
Act (Act No.49 of 1999). Also DEA further provided that, the approval of the ICMP implies that the institution will 
be required to report on the implementation of the ICMP in its annual report. 
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4.1 Introduction 

Overview of H R matters 
The Human Resources Department is responsible for providing Strategic and Operational Human Resources Support 
to embrace diversity, environmental sustainability, and social justice and contribute towards the delivery of South 
Africa's Qualifications Authority's (SAQA) mandate. The Department supports the implementation of Strategic Objectives 
1 and 2 of the Integrated Conservation Management Plan. 

They are further responsible to provide comprehensive HR management processes and systems and support business 
partners in delivering world class service human resources management and training. 

HR priorities for the year under review 
1. Structural Realignment
2. Implementation of a Performance Management System
3. Job Grading
4. Management of Labour Relations

For details on actual performance refer to the Annual Report of Performance Information 2015/2016. 

Employee performance management framework 
Employees submitted their signed performance agreement for 2015/2016. Performance evaluations will take place 
in April 2016. 

Policy development 
RIM is currently in the process of reviewing all policies and procedures. 

Human Resources Policies shall be benchmarked against the relevant legislative requirements and amended where 
necessary with the approval of Council. 

Council approved the Disciplinary Policy and the Grievance policy. 

Highlight achievements 
The vacant executive position for the Facilities and Infrastructure was filled during the year. 

RIM believes that the appointments will enhance the smooth management Facilities and Infrastructure and the 
museum will rely less on consultants. 

RIM enabled 87 employees to attend training courses and assisted 27 employees with study bursaries to further 
their education. 

RIM signed a recognition agreement with NEHAWU. 

Challenges faced by RIM 
RIM did not experience any industrial relations challenges; however RIM is still faced with the issue of discipline 
as depicted by the number of warnings issued to employees. Disciplinary cases held and dismissals were less as 
compared to the previous years. 

Future HR plans /goals 
The following targets have been set out for the Human Resources department to meet during 2016-2017 financial 
year: 

1. Facilitate the structural realignment for the organisation.
2. Manage performance management system in accordance with relevant legislation.
3. Perform annual skills audit on competencies of all staff.
4. Conduct two staff satisfaction surveys.
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Human Resources Oversight Statistics 

1. Total Employee cost

Al I RIM Activities 197 376 436 77 978 131 39.5 273 285 634.17 

N1 - All employees including the following categories: Council, permanent and non-permanent employees. 

N2 - Total employee costs as per the Annual Financial Statements Note 18. 

2. Personnel cost by salary band

Senior Management 5550619 6.28% 5 1110124 

Professionally qualified & experienced 5659517 6.40% 7 808502 

Professionally qualified 17157409 19.41% 37 463714 

Skilled 8284991 9.37% 19 436052 

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making 49027081 55.46% 186 263586 

Contract staff 1789708 2.02% 55 32540 

Interns 619366 0.70% 23 26929 

Council members 235566 0.27% 7 33652 

Audit committee members 72422 0.08% 3 24141 

88405272.08 100% 342 258470 

N1 - All employees including the following categories: Council, permanent and non-permanent employees. 

N3 - The above employee expenditure per VIP payroll. This amount does not include movements in employee cost 
provisions as per the Annual Financial Statements Note 18. 

3. Training

3.1 Training costs

All RIM Activities 77 978 131 848 919 1.09% 114 7446.66 

Please note that training expenditure includes training courses and staff bursaries. 



Human esource Management 

3.2 Skills development 1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 
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Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers 1 0 0 

Professionals 3 0 0 

Technicians and Associate Professionals 1 1 0 

Clerks 0 0 0 

Service and Sales Workers 3 1 0 

Skilled Agricultural and Fishery Workers 0 0 0 

Craft and Related Trades Workers 0 0 0 

Plant and Machine Operators and Assemblers 0 0 0 

Elementary Occupations 0 0 0 
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3.3 Training opportunities 1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 
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Technicians and Associate Professionals 

Clerks 

Service and Sales Workers 

Skilled Agricultural and Fishery Workers 

Craft and Related Trades Workers 
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Elementary Occupations 
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4. Employment and vacancies

All RIM Activities 263 
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5. Employment changes

Top Management 3 

Senior Management 7 0 

Professionally skilled 49 9 

Skilled 144 

Semi skilled 0 33 

Non-permanent (N 1) 47 13 

13 0 

INTERNS 13 

6. Reasons for employees leaving
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.. 

!. ... 'llffll ,r:.r, 

Death 2 

Resignation 21 

Dismissal 1 

Retrenched 1 

Ill health 0 

Expiry of contract/end of contract 29 

Transfer 4 

Absconded 0 

Discharged 0 

Pensioned 4 

� � 

Resignation from Council 3 

7. Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Final written warning 

Written warnings 

Dismissals 

Case in progress 

One month suspension of net salaries 

Two months suspension of net salaries 

0 
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8. Performance rewards
No performance rewards were paid during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

9. Employment Equity Status
Total number of employees in each of the following post levels on 31 March 2016:

Council and Audit Committee 5 0 0 2 0 0 0 10 

Members 

Top Management 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 

Senior Management 0 2 0 0 0 0 6 

Professionally qualified and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
experienced specialists in 
mid-management 

Skilled technical and 18 18 0 8 6 0 5 0 57 
academically qualified workers, 
junior mana3ement, supervisors,
foremen an superintendents 

Semi-skilled and discretionary 63 24 0 45 16 0 3 0 153 

decision making 

Unskilled and defined decision 13 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 15 

making 

Contract Staff 7 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 14 

Interns 6 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 14 

Disabled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 

CONTENTS 

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the parliament: 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL .............................................................................................................. 54 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE .............................................................................................................. 57 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ........................................................................................................... 59 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ................................................................................................... 60 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ..................................................................................................... 60 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT .................................................................................................................................. 61 

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS ....................................................... 62 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES .................................................................................................................................. 63 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ....................................................................................... 73 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 54 to 87, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 
were approved by the accounting authority on 29 July 2016 and were signed on its behalf by: 

Mr Sibusiso Blessing Buthelezi 
Chairperson of the Council 
29 July 2016 
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on Robben Island Museum 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Robben Island Museum set out on pages 59 to 87, which comprise

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial performance, statement of

changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget with actual information

for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Accounting authority's responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The council, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation

of these financial statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting

Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa

1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

Auditor-general's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my

audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation

of the financial statements to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit

opinion.
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Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Robben

Island Museum as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in

accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter 

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures 

8. As disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2015 have been

restated as a result of reclassifications during the 2015-16 financial year in the financial statements of the Robben

Island Museum for the year ended, 31 March 2015.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued

in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against

predetermined objectives of selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, compliance with

legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to raise reportable findings as described under

each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express

an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives 

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance

information of the following selected programme presented in the annual performance report of the entity for

the year ended 31 March 2016:

• Programme 1: Business Development on pages 26 to 33

11. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in

accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was

consistent with the planned programme. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets

were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's

framework for managing programme performance information.

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate

and complete.

13. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information

for the following programme:

• Programme 1: Business Development



Statements 

Additional matters 

14. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
for the selected programme, I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets 

15. Refer to the annual performance report on page 20 for information on the achievement of the planned targets
for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements 

16. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material
misstatements were on the reported performance information of Programme 1 :Business Development. As management
subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability
of the reported performance information.

Compliance with legislation 

17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. I did not identify any instances of material
non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the
PAA.

Internal control 

18. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and
compliance with legislation. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

�-{]etvqal
Cape Town (/
29 July 2016

AU DI T O R • GE Nl!: R AL 

SOUT H AP RICA 

Auditing lo build public confidence 



Annual Financia Statements 

Report of the Audit Committee Report 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Audit Committee Attendance 

The current Audit Committee consists of five (5) members. Attendance of meetings during the 2015/16 financial 

year was as follows: 

Mr. Thabo Mosololi 4 4 

Dr. Kobus Laubscher 4 3 

Mrs. Thobeka Ntshiza 4 3 

Mr. Mava Dada 4 4 

Mr. Pandelani Nefolovhodwe 4 4 

In addition to the above members persons attending the committee meeting by standing invitation include; 

• The CEO;

• The CFO;

• Representatives of the AGSA; and

• Representatives from the Internal Auditors, SNG.

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 51 (1) (a) (ii) of the 

Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 

appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with 

this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 
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The Effectiveness of Internal Control 

The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 

liabilities and working capital are effectively managed. In line with the PFMA and the King Ill on Corporate Governance 

requirements. Internal audits provide the committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are 

appropriate and effective. This is achieved through a risk management process as well as the identification of corrective 

actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal auditors, 

the audit report on the Annual Financial Statements, and the management report of the AGSA, it was noted that 

there were certain weaknesses identified and issues relating to performance reporting requiring management attention. 

Other than the issues noted, we can report that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the period 

under review was sufficiently adequate. 

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report 

The public entity has reported monthly and quarterly to the Treasury as is required by the PFMA. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the annual financial statements prepared by the public entity and discussed these with the AGSA, 

reviewed the management letter and managements responses thereto, reviewed the entities compliance with legal 

and regulatory provisions and changes to accounting policies and practices. 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the Annual Financial Statements 

and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report 

of the Auditor-General. 

Mr Thabo Mosololi 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
Robben Island Museum 
29 July 2016 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2016 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Inventories 

Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Heritage assets 

Deposits 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Lease incentive 

Trade and other payables 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

Provisions 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Lease incentive 

Operating lease liability 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Reserves 

Revaluation reserve 

Accumulated surplus 

Total Net Assets 

Note(s) 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

24 

10 

11 

12 

24 

24 

22 

2016 
R 

915 194 

2 048 339 

179 551 531 

182 515 064 

47 181 403 

91 587 

107 565 013 

138 553 

154 976 556 

337 491 620 

74 333 

19 668 413 

47 584 963 

135 021 

67 462 730 

142 473 

6 426 

148 899 

67 611 629 

269 879 991 

125 884 953 

143 995 038 

269 879 991 

2015 
R 

1 160 978 

981 683 

123 187 721 

125 330 382 

51 362 290 

105 966 

107 950 538 

113 226 

159 532 020 

284 862 402 

25 982 575 

250 OOO 

128 166 

26 360 741 

26 360 741 

258 501 661 

126 270 478 

132 231 183 

258 501 661 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Sale of goods 

Rendering of services 

Rental of facilities and equipment 

Debt Impairment 

Other income 

Recoveries 

Finance income 

Total revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Transfer revenue 

Grants 

Total revenue 

Expenditure 

Employee related costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Finance costs 

Debt Impairment 

General expenses 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus 

Surplus for the year 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Balance at 01 April 2014 

Changes in net assets 

Revaluation of assets 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 

Surplus for the year 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 

Total changes 

Balance at 01 April 2015 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

Revaluation of assets 

Total changes 

Balance at 31 March 2016 

Note(s) 

Revaluation 
reserve 

R 

125 848 289 

422 189 

422 189 

422 189 

422 189 

126 270 478 

(385 525) 

(385 525) 

125 884 953 

22 

Note(s) 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2016 
R 

3 072 771 

104 178 828 

1 519 951 

586 

7 881 366 

78 784 

7 438 620 

124 170 906 

84 969 385 

209 140 291 

(77 978 131) 

(6 265 417) 

(325 384) 

(112 807 504) 

(197 376 436) 

11 763 855 

11 763 855 

2015 
R 

2 806 016 

82 207 758 

1 380 076 

1 491 903 

5 908 694 

93 794 447 

96 450 095 

190 244 542 

(71 380 303) 

(6 312 922) 

(842) 

(88 207) 

(106 939 330) 

(184 721 604) 

5 522 938 

5 522 938 

Accumulated Total net 
surplus assets 

R R 

126 708 245 252 556 534 

422 189 

422 189 

5 522 938 5 522 938 

5 522 938 5 945 127 

5 522 938 5 945 127 

132 231 183 258 501 661 

11 763 855 11 763 855 

(385 525) 

11 763 855 11 378 330 

143 995 038 269 879 991 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Sale of goods and services rendered 

Grants received 

Payments 

Employee related costs 

Goods and services 

Net cash flows (utilised) / generated from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of intangible assets 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance income 

Net cash flows from financing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Statements 

Note(s) 

23 

6 

7 

5 

2016 
R 

116 116 684 

132 304 348 

2015 
R 

88 954 575 

82 254 720 

248 421 032 171 209 295 

(77 320 340) 

(119 724 511) 

(72 819 128) 

(99 187 019) 

(197 044 851) (172 006 147) 

51 376 181 (796 852) 

(2 088 566) 

(45 770) 

(2 285 166) 

(7 595) 

(2 134 336) (2 292 761) 

7 121 965 5 847 894 

7 121 965 5 847 894 

56 363 810 2 758 281 

123 187 721 120 429 440 

179 551 531 123 187 721 
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

Budget on Accrual Basis 

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference 
budget on comparable between final 

basis budget and 
actual 

R R R R R 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Sale of goods 2 828 205 2 828 205 3 072 771 244 566 28.1 
Rendering of services 86 676 165 10 774 895 97 451 060 104 178 828 6 727 768 28.2 
Rental of facilities and 1 557 585 1 557 585 1 519 951 (37 634) 28.3 
equipment 
Other income 1 219 375 3 697 755 4 917 130 7 881 952 2 964 822 28.4 
Recoveries 78 784 78 784 28.5 
Interest received - investment 4 945 816 2 432 342 7 378 158 7 438 620 60 462 28.6 

Total revenue from exchange 97 227 146 16 904 992 114 132 138 124 170 906 10 038 768 
transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange 

transactions 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants 68 419 OOO 13 035 641 81 454 641 84 969 385 3 514 744 27.7 

Total revenue 165 646 146 29 940 633 195 586 779 209 140 291 13 553 512 

Expenditure 

Personnel (81 763 925) 3 567 617 (78 196 308) (77 978 131) 218 177 27.8 
Depreciation and amortisation (4 391 243) (4 391 243) (6 265 417) (1 874 174) 27.9 
Finance costs (325 384) (325 384) 27.10 
General Expenses (106 335 808) (8 979 715) (115 315 523) (112 807 504) 2 508 019 27.11 

Total expenditure ( 192 490 976) (5 412 098) (197 903 074) (197 376 436) 526 638 

Surplus before taxation (26 844 830) 24 528 535 (2 316 295) 11 763 855 14 080 150 

Actual Amount on Comparable (26 844 830) 24 528 535 (2 316 295) 11 763 855 14 080 150 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board in 

accordance with Section 122(3) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 

cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below. 

1.1 Property, plant and equipment 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The bulk of the land on Robben Island on which the Museum operates is not brought to account as it is not the property of the 
Museum but government owned and only managed by the Museum on behalf of government. Improvement costs incurred by 

the Museum with regards to these assets are capitalised and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of these assets. 

The Nelson Mandela Gateway building used by the Museum is recognised as owner occupied property and accounted for at 

cost, and depreciated over the useful lives of the building. Where management has dual usage of a building and has 
commenced use for investment purposes and this use is not material in relation to the total cost of the building, the building will 

be reflected as owner occupied and will not be proportionately split into investment and owner occupied property. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 

subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance 

costs are charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 

is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Museum and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. These costs are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets. 

All classes of property, plant and equipment except for boats are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Boats shall be revalued at least once every five years. If economic conditions have had a substantial impact on the value of a 

class of boats, prior to the five year period, such valuation will be performed on the identified class of boats. When boats are 

revalued the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the gross carrying 
amount is restated to the revalued amount. 

Books shall be revalued at least once every five years. If economic conditions have had a substantial impact on the value of a 

class of books, prior to the five year period, such valuation will be performed on the identified class of books. 

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The 

increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period. 

The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in 

respect of that asset. 

The increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of boats are credited to the revaluation reserve in net assets. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve directly in the 

statement of changes of net assets; all other decreases (depreciation and impairments) are charged to the statement of 

financial performance. The revaluation reserve will be released and transferred to 'accumulated surplus' when the assets are 
disposed of. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 
Buildings 

Plant and machinery 
• Cranes
• Plant, machinery, tools

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Computer equipment

Leasehold improvements
Books

Boats
• Hull
• Propulsion system, engine, gear box and propellers
• Deck equipment, rib, winches, cranses and anchors
• Navigation, communication and scientific surveilance equipment
• Television sets, video machines, safety and medical equipment

Average useful life 
40 years 

15 years 

5 - 8 years 

5-9 years
5 - 8 years

3 - 7 years

3 years
Indefinite

20 years 
20 years 

5 - 7 years 

5 - 7 years 
5 -10 years 

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at each reporting date. If the 

expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

A change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or the amount of the periodic 

consumption of an asset, that results from the assessment of the present status of, and expected future benefits and 
obligations associated with, assets and liabilities. 

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate, shall be recognised prospectively by including it in surplus or deficit in: (a) 

the period of the change, if the change affects that period only; or (b) the period of the change and future periods, if the change 

affects both. To the extent that a change in an accounting estimate gives rise to changes in assets and liabilities, or relates to 
an item of net assets, it shall be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or item of net assets 

in the period of the change. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 

expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 

the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

Property, plant and equipment which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary 

course of activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. These assets are 

not accounted for as non-current assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash 
flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.2 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of a separately acquired intangible asset comprises: its purchase 
price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and any directly 

attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

All assets are considered non-cash generating except the boats. 

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable 

assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of 
the asset. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 

at its fair value as at that date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 

the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item 
Computer software, other 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 
• on disposal; or

Useful life 
4 - 6 years 

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

1.3 Heritage assets 

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance 

and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations. 

The entity recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated 

with the asset will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

If an entity holds an asset that might be regarded as a heritage asset but which, on initial recognition, does not meet the 

recognition criteria of a heritage asset because it cannot be reliably measured, relevant and useful information about it shall be 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

A heritage asset that qualifies for recognition as an asset shall be measured at its cost. Where a heritage asset is acquired 

through a non-exchange transaction, its cost shall be measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.3 Heritage assets (continued) 

Subsequent measurement 

Statements 

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whose fair value can be measured reliably, is carried at a revalued 
amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent impairment losses. 

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a revaluation 

surplus. However, the increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the 

same heritage asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
However, the decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 

surplus in respect of that heritage asset. 

Heritage assets shall be revalued at least once every five years. If economic conditions have had a substantial impact on the 

value of a class of heritage assets, prior to the five year period, such valuation will be performed on the identified class of 
heritage assets. 

Impairment 

The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 

entity estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset. 

Transfers 

Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset. 

Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset. 

Derecognition 

The entity derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from 

its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 
heritage asset is derecognised. 

1.4 Financial instruments 

An entity shall recognise a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the 

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. An entity recognises financial assets using trade date 

accounting. 

The issuer of a financial instrument shall classify the instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 
liability, a financial asset or residual interest in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the 

definitions of a financial liability, a financial asset and a residual interest. 

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, an entity shall measure it at its fair value plus, in the case of a 

financial asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

An entity shall measure all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories: (a) 

Financial instruments at fair value. (b) Financial instruments at amortised cost.(c) Financial instruments at cost. All financial 

assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value shall be 
recognised in surplus or deficit. For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is 

recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the 

amortisation process. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at 

amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount 

and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at 
the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying 

amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall 

be recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 

the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed. 

An entity shall derecognise a financial asset only when: (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, are settled or waived; (b) the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 

the financial asset; or (c) the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional 

restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity shall: (i) derecognise the asset; and (ii) recognise separately any rights and 

obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

An entity shall remove a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it is extinguished - i.e.when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived. 

A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 

when, and only when, an entity: (a) currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and (b) intends 

either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash 
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities. For the 

purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short term deposits held. 

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, less provision for impairment. All trade and other receivables are 
assessed at least annually for possible impairment. Impairments of trade and other receivables are determined in accordance 

with the accounting policy for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through the use of an allowance account. 

Provision is made for bad debts for all debtors older than 90 days. 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

1.5 Tax 

No provision has been made for SA Income Taxation, as the Museum is exempt from income taxation in terms of section 10 (1) 

( cA) (i) of the Income Tax Act, 1962. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their 
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the first in first out basis. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.6 Inventories (continued) 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or 
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost 
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The entity assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs is determined. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in 
surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a re-valued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for 
assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts 
of those assets are estimated. 

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. Any reversal of an 
impairment loss of a re-valued asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

An entity shall assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable service amount of the asset. 

Entities are required to annually assess, by considering internal and external factors, whether there is an indication that a non
cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indications are triggered, the entity is required to estimate the recoverable 
service amount of that asset. 

A non-cash-generating asset will be impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount. The 
recoverable service amount is the higher of the non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the entity must reduce the asset's carrying 
amount to the recoverable service amount and recognise the impairment loss in surplus or deficit. However, if the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, then the impairment loss should be treated as a revaluation decrease. After the impairment loss 
has been recognised, the entity must adjust the depreciation or amortisation charge to allocate the revised carrying amount 
over the remaining useful life of the asset. 

The reversal of the impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. The depreciation or amortisation charge should also be adjusted after 
the reversal to allocate the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 
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1.9 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount 
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution payable to 
a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value 
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the 
currency and estimated term of the obligation. 

1.1 O Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles 
the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not 
exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for 
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 
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1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
• the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 
• the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor

effective control over the goods sold; 
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

and
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome 
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of 
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the 
significant act is executed. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

Finance income 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either 
receives value from another entity 1/Vithout directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another 
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction. 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity. 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is 
recognised as revenue. 

Unconditional grants received (i.e. Grants received without any conditions attached) will be recognised as revenue equal to the 
fair value of the assets received for no consideration. 

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

RIM ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16 



Annua 

Robben Island Museum 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.13 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.15 lrregu lar expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is any expenditure incurred by the entity that contravenes any applicable legislation. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year 
end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure 
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial 
statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 

updating the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 

1.16 Budget information 

The Entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorizations (or equivalent), which is 
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome 
objectives. 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2015/04/01 to 2016/03/31. 

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted 
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 

Refer to note 28 for additional information. 

1.17 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 

Operating leases - lessor 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis 
is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 
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1.17 Leases (continued) 

Operating leases - lessee 

Statements 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. The asset or 
liability is not discounted. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

1.18 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.19 Related parties 

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

1.20 Events after reporting date 

Recognised amounts in the financial statements are adjusted to reflect events arising after the reporting date that provide 
evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date. Events after the reporting date that are indicative of conditions that 
arose after the reporting date are dealt with by way of a note. 

1.21 Going concern assumption 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity \/Viii continue to operate as 
a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 
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2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Years beginning on or 
after 

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2015 

GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under 01 April 2015 
common control 

GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not 01 April 2015 

under common control 
GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2015 

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

2016 2015 
R R 

Expected impact: 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for 

the entity's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later periods: 

Standard/ Interpretation: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

GRAP 20: Related parties 

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Granter 

G RAP108: Statutory Receivables 
IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a 

Granter Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset 

DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following 
the initial adoption of Standards of GRAP 

3. INVENTORIES

Consumable fuel (diesel, petrol) 
Village shop inventory 

Inventory Alpha One 

Books and posters 

Other 

4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors 

Interest accrued 
Staff debtors 

Sundry debtors 

Prepaid expenses 

Fair value of trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables 

Overdue debtors have been excluded. 

Effective date: 

Years beginning on or 

after 
01 April 2016 

01 April 2016 

01 April 2016 
01 April 2016 

01 April 2016 

Expected impact: 

Not Significant 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 
Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

190 092 
20 241 

17 263 

668 270 

19 328 

915 194 

499 119 

877 217 
18 747 

291 459 

361 797 

2 048 33 9 

499 119 

311 186 
16 612 

11 723 

771 090 

50 367 

1160 978 

52 844 

560 562 
56 911 

30 548 

280 818 

981 683 

36 013 
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4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade debtors consist of: 
Gross trade debtors 
Less provision for doubtful debts 

5 . CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2016 

Statements 

2016 2015 
R R 

584 833 139 144 
(85 714) (86 300) 

499 119 5 2  8 44 

15 946 16 246 
179 535 585 123 171 475 

179 5 51 5 31 12318 7 721 

2015 

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value 
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation 

and and 
accumulated accumulated 
impairment impairment 

Buildings 34 559 638 (13 517 063) 21 042 575 34 559 638 (12 653 072) 21 906 566 
Plant and machinery 973 456 (598 850) 374 606 762 002 (543 055) 218 947 
Furniture and fixtures 6 338 543 (5 763 932) 574 611 6 413 248 (5 756 276) 656 972 
Motor vehicles 11 466 941 (10 262 163) 1 204 778 11 270 530 (9 789 194) 1 481 336 
Computer equipment 7 340 403 (6 092 069) 1 248 334 7 358 935 (5 701 861) 1 657 074 
Leasehold improvements 1 391 570 (507 482) 884 088 483 166 (483 166) 
Books 401 445 401 445 422 189 422 189 
Boats 33 OOO 430 (11 549 464) 21 450 966 32 886 031 (7 866 825) 25 019 206 

Total 95 472 426 (48 291 023) 47181 403 9415 5 739 (42 793 449) 51 362 290 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016 

Opening Additions Depreciation Impairment Total 
balance loss 

Buildings 21 906 566 (863 991) 21 042 575 
Plant and machinery 218 947 233 098 (76 914) (525) 374 606
Furniture and fixtures 656 972 141 706 (216 249) (7 818) 574 611 
Motor vehicles 1 481 336 196 410 (452 100) (20 868) 1 204 778 
Computer equipment 1 657 074 486 850 (884 593) (10 997) 1 248 334 
Leasehold improvements 908 404 (24 316) 884 088 
Books 422 189 (20 744) 401 445 
Boats 25 019 206 122 098 (3 687 105) (3 233) 21 450 966 

51 362 290 2 08 8 5 66 (6 205 268 ) (64 18 5 ) 47181 403 
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 

2016 2015 
R R 

Opening Additions Revaluations Depreciation Impairment Total 
balance loss 

Buildings 22 770 557 (863 991) 21 906 566 
Plant and machinery 187 456 96 342 (63 473) (1 378) 218 947 
Furniture and fixtures 830 909 58 309 (218 442) (13 804) 656 972 
Motor vehicles 1 563 686 509 610 (591 960) 1 481 336 
Computer equipment 1 228 895 1 363 423 (933 655) (1 589) 1 657 074 
Leasehold improvements 192 465 27 450 (219 915) 
Books 422 189 422 189 
Boats 28 133 983 230 032 (3 344 809) 25 019 206 

54 907 951 2 285 166 4 22189 (6 236 245) (16 771) 51 36 2 290 

Reva I uation s 

The entity's boats were re-valued on the 30th November 2012. The valuation was performed by an independent valuator 
(Tashoma property valuators and consultants). The revaluation surplus was credited to the statement of changes in net assets 
in the year of valuation. 

Library books were previously considered to be Heritage Assets and therefore not included in the financial statements. 
Subsequently, the valuation of heritage assets indicated that not all books are heritage and therefore should be recognised as 

Property Plant and Equipment. The books were valued by M&H Valuation Services on the 30th March 2015. The books were 

recognised in terms of Directive 7 deemed costs and recognised the effect in the revaluation surplus. 

Assets to the value of R64 185 (2015: R35 288) were written off during the current financial year, due to damage, 
obsolescence, theft or not verif ied during the asset verification process. Impairment reversals consists of assets to the value of 
RO (2015: R18 517) being recognised as a result of RIM finding assets that were previously written off. 

CHANGE IN ESTIMATE 

In the current year RIM reassessed the useful lives of computer equipment, boats, plant and intangible assets. Assets useful 
lives were extended or decreased by one, two or three years depending on the condition and expected future benefits that will 
be derived from the use of these assets. The change in accounting estimate effect will be accounted for prospectively in terms 
of GRAP 3. 

Statement of financial position - Net effect 

Computer equipment 
Boats 
Intangible assets 

Statement of financial performance - Net effect 
Depreciation 

2016 

130 579 

(306 078) 
26 542 

(148 957) 

148 957 

Within 1 year 

(612 155) 

(61 2155) 

463 199 

2 to 5 years Greater than 5 
years 

(4 580 769) 

(4 580 769) 

3 968 614 (4 580 769) 
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 

Cost/ 
Valuation 

430 233 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016 

Computer software 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015 

Computer software 

8 .  HERITAGE ASSETS 

2016 2015 
R R 

2016 2015 

Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation Valuation amortisation 

and and 
accumulated accumulated 
impairment impairment 

(338 646) 91 587 384 463 (278 497) 

Opening Additions Amortisation 
balance 

105 966 45 770 (60 149) 

Opening Additions Amortisation 
balance 

175 048 7 595 (76 677) 

Total 

91 587 

Total 

105 966 

105 966 

According to the transitional provision, the entity is not required to measure heritage assets for reporting periods beginning on 
or after a date within three years following the date of initial adoption of the Standard of GRAP on Heritage assets. The policy 
has been adopted from 1 April 2012 and full compliance with the standard is achieved from 31 March 2015. 

Cost/ 
Valuation 

Arts and Artefacts 66 005124 
Audio Visual 26185 414 
Photographic 15760 000 

Total 107 950 538 

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2016 

Arts and Artefacts 
Audio visual 
Photographic 

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2015 

Arts and artefacts 
Audio visual 

2016 

Accumulated 
impairment 

losses 

(65 025) 
(83 300) 

(237 200) 

(385 525) 

2015 

Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value 
Valuation impairment 

losses 

65 940 099 66 005124 
26 102 114 26185 414 
15 522 800 15 760 OOO 

107565 013 107 950 538 

Opening 
balance 

66 005124 
26185 414 
15 760 OOO 

107 950 538 

Impairment 
losses 

recognised 
(65 025) 
(83 300) 

(237 200) 

(385 525) 

Opening 
balance 

66 005124 
26185 414 

66 005 124 
26185 414 
15 760 OOO 

107 950 538 

Total 

65 940 099 
26 102 114 
15 522 800 

107565 013 

Total 

66 005124 
26185 414 
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8. HERITAGE ASSETS (continued)
Photographic

Heritage assets which fair values cannot be reliably measured 

Historical paper boxes and files 

2016 2015 

15 760 OOO 

R R 

15 760 OOO 

107 950 538 107 950 538 

The following heritage assets cannot be reliably measured: Historical paper boxes and files. Robben Island Museum is a 
custodian to one of the largest archives of liberation struggle materials in the country. The boxes contain many unique 
materials chronicling the struggle for freedom, or to Robben Island and imprisonment under apartheid. For the financial year 
ending 31 March 2016, Historical paper boxes and files count was 15 714. Fair value cannot be determined reliably due to no 
active market for the items. 

Revaluations 

Arts and artefacts 

The effective date of the revaluation was 2015/03/31. Revaluations were performed by independent valuer, Mr Philip Powell. 

The method used to determine fair value is Open Market Value (OMV) principles, which refer to the Fair Value in accordance 
with accounting practice (GRAP). Where relevant the appraiser consulted with professional colleagues, specialists and 
advisors in determining the Open Market Value. 

Art and artefacts assets to the value of R65 025 were written off during the current financial year, due to damage, 
obsolescence, theft or not verified during the asset verification process. 

The revaluation surplus relating to the Arts and Artefacts is as follows: 

Opening balance 
Write Off 

Closing balance 

Photographic 

66 005 124 66 005 124 
(65 025) 

65 940 099 66 005 124 

The effective date of the revaluation was 2015/03/31. Revaluations were performed by independent valuer, Mr Philip Powell. 

The method used to determine fair value isOpen Market Value (OMV) principles ,which refer to the Fair Value in accordance 
with accounting practice (GRAP). Where relevant the appraiser consulted with professional colleagues, specialists and 
advisors in determining the Open Market Value. 

Photographic assets to the value of R237 200 were written off during the current financial year, due to damage, obsolescence, 
theft or not verified during the asset verification process. 

The revaluation surplus relating to the Photographic collection is as follows: 

Opening balance 
Write Off 

Closing balance 

Audio Visual 

15 760 OOO 15 760 OOO 
(237 200) 

15 522 800 15 760 OOO 

The effective date of the revaluation was 2015/03/31. Revaluations were performed by independent valuer, Mr Philip Powell 
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8. HERITAGE ASSETS (continued)

2016 2015 
R R 

The method used to determine fair value is Open Market Value (OMV) principles ,which refer to the Fair Value in accordance 
with accounting practice (GRAP). Where relevant the appraiser consulted with professional colleagues, specialists and 

advisors in determining the Open Market Value. 

Audio Visual assets to the value of R83 300 were written off during the current financial year, due to damage, obsolescence, 

theft or not verified during the asset verification process. 

The revaluation surplus relating to the Audio Visual collection is as follows: 

Opening balance 

Write Off 

9. DEPOSITS

Deposits 

26 185 414 26 185 414 

(83 300) 

26 102 114 26 185 414 

138 553 113 226 

Deposits were paid in respect of Transnet and the V&A Waterfront. The short term portion of deposits are included in cash and 

cash equivalents. 

10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 

Income received in advance 
Sundry payables 

Ticket sales refundable 

Accrued leave pay 
Accrued bonus 

Accrued expenditure 

Income received in advance represents ticket sales for tours after 31 March 2016. 

Fair value of trade and other payables 

Trade payables 

11. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Movement during the year 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Deferred income recognised 

Contingent grant received 

7 463 543 

3 618 415 
17 753 

192 050 

4 027 979 
1 240 748 

3 107 925 

19 668 413 

7 463 544 

250 OOO 
(4 031 385) 

51 366 348 

47 584 963 

14 102 894 

3 539 062 
1 588 520 

154 492 

3 544 727 
1 111 228 

1 941 652 

25 982 575 

14 102 894 

14 445 375 
(14 445 375) 

250 OOO 

250 OOO 

Robben Island Museum has the following unspent grants at the year end: Department of Tourism (R1 OM), Department of Arts 

and Culture Infrastructure (R37.58M). Revenue is recognised when expenditure is incurred in executing the department of 
tourism and infrastructure related activities. 

12. PROVISIONS
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Reconciliation of provisions - 2016 

Opening 

Balance 

Provision for workmens compensation 128 166 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015 

Opening 
Balance 

Provision for workmens compensation 119 502 

Statements 

Additions 

125 406 

Additions 

117 812 

2016 2015 

Utilised during 

the year 

(118 551) 

Utilised during 
the year 

(109 148) 

R R 

Total 

135 021 

Total 

128 166 

The provision is calculated as a % of employees earnings per year. Information is submitted to the Department of Labour 
annually, who provides a statement of amount payable in respect of the provision raised. Based on history, the timing of the 

required payments are uncertain. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management 

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, 

cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The management of the entity have overall responsibility for the establishment and monitoring of the entity's risk management 
policies and procedures which have been established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the entity, to set appropriate 

risk limits and controls and to monitor adherence to limits, risk management policies and procedures and reviewed regularly to 

reflect changes in market conditions and the entity's activities. 

Liquidity risk 

The entity's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk 
through an ongoing review of future commitments. 

Cash is managed prudently by keeping sufficient cash in bank accounts. Cash is received from Government funding and 
several project funders. This cash is managed on behalf of the funders, and separate bank accounts are held for funders 

money as and when required. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers, including 

outstanding receivables and committed transactions. Sales to customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. All 
deposits are with reputable major banks. 

Aged debtors for debtors that are overdue but not impaired: 
30 days 

60 days 

90 days 

Market risk 

5 229 

72 241 

4 422 

81 892 

7 138 

9 693 

16 831 
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Statements 

2016 2015 
R R 

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity's income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates. 

31 March 2016 

Assets 

Bank balances 

31 March 2015 
Assets 

Bank balances 

Currency risk 

Floating 
interest 

0% - 6.5% 

0% - 5.5% 

Total 

179 551 531 

123 187 721 

There were no open forward exchange contracts at the year-end. The entity had no exposure to foreign currency at the 
reporting date. 

14. RENDERING OF SERVICES

Private and guided tours 
Robben Island Museum tour sales 

Cargo sales 

Hospitality, accommodation and management fees 

15. REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

1 175 760 
101 399 507 

432 155 

1 171 406 

104 178 828 

925 292 
80 420 466 

169 950 

692 050 

82 207 758 

A business relationship currently exist between Robben Island Museum (RIM), Department of Art & Culture (DAC) and 
Department of Public Works (DPW). DAC currently funds approved Capital Projects, Municipal Charges and Lease expenditure 

for all property under the custodianship of DPW. DPW has however a mandate of acting as an implementation agent with 

regard to Infrastructure Projects, Property Management and the related maintenance at RIM . It also enters into third party 
relationships on behalf of DAC's entities emanating from the above mentioned relationship. DAC paid DPW for expenses 

relating to Municipal Charges and Operating Lease expenses during the current financial year on behalf of RIM. 

16. FINANCE INCOME

Interest revenue 
Bank 

17. GRANTS

MTEF allocated DAC operational grant (unconditional) 

Deferred income recognised (conditional grants) 
DAC infrastructure (unconditional) 

7 438 620 

68 419 OOO 

4 031 385 
12 519 OOO 

84 969 385 

5 908 694 

65 414 OOO 

14 445 375 
16 590 720 

96 450 095 
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2016 2015 
R R 

18. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Basic salary 50 035 088 47 393 529 

Medical aid - entity contributions 8 149 285 6 914 582 
UIF 415 182 403 154 

WCA 125 405 117 813 

SOL 716 551 660 186 
Leave pay provision charge 966 189 466 365 

Other short term costs 341 778 289 635 

Defined contribution plans 5 735 962 5 190 631 
Travel, subsistence and other allowances 221 048 297 683 

13th Cheque payments 3 781 747 3 299 875 

Housing benefits and allowances 7 463 646 6 346 850 
Service rewards 26 250 

77 978 131 71 380 303 

19. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation 6 205 268 6 236 245 
Amortisation 60 149 76 677 

6 265 417 6 312 922 

20. FINANCE COSTS

Trade and other payables 325 384 842 
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2016 2015 
R R 

21. GENERAL EXPENSES

Advertising 384 840 399 574 

Agency and support/ outsourced services 7 024 504 6 944 416 
Assets expensed 51 980 35 388 

Assets written off 64 185 16 771 

Auditors remuneration 1 791 841 1 690 236 
Bank charges 2 339 028 1 853 921 

Boat expenses 9 632 926 6 450 632 

Business and advisory consulting fees 3 535 619 4 192 988 
CCMA dismissals expense* 80 OOO 434 871 

Catering 186 307 267 091 

Coega Infrastructure payment 3 514 744 
Communication 4 272 OOO 4 151 869 

Consumables 1 644 721 1 726 528 

Education 146 691 206 224 
Electricity 3 372 373 2 400 740 

Entertainment 4 500 

Exhibitions 588 119 181 695 
Fines and penalties 20 267 

Fuel and oil 7 430 479 11 191 892 

Heritage conservation cost 123 862 41 692 
Heritage programmes 103 126 257 477 

Hire of boats 44 296 236 38 230 421 

Infrastructure and maintenance 1 549 990 3 801 446 
Insurance 898 492 981 798 

Internal audit 401 816 373 273 

Inventory write off 214 930 364 779 
Legal professional fees 2 549 938 2 595 289 

Medical expenses 54 930 66 031 

Motor vehicle expenses 247 255 332 603 
Other administrative expenses 152 805 404 412 

Owned and leasehold property expenses 9 466 705 8 742 313 

Printing and stationery 320 705 355 560 
Projects (EPP and GRAP 103) 625 714 1 906 019 

Relocation and recruitment costs* 1 045 153 390 207 

Robben Island water and power 644 182 3 793 963 

SARS 538 358 
Staff Training* 848 919 584 473 

Staff welfare 7 881 5 283 

Travel and subsistence 1 549 475 920 283 
Venue expenses 1 106 675 622 405 

112 807 504 106 939 330 

Note*: CCMA dismissal expense, Relocation and recruitment costs and Staff training have previously been disclosed under the 

employee related cost note. These expenses are now disclosed under the general expenses note as it better reflects the nature 

of the expenditure. 

22. REVALUATION RESERVE

Opening balance 

Change during the year 

126 270 478 125 848 289 

(385 525) 422 189 

125 884 953 126 270 478 

The revaluation reserve consists of the surplus from the revaluation of boats, heritage assets and books. 
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22. REVALUATION RESERVE (continued)

Boats revaluation reserve 

Heritage assets revaluation reserve 
Books revaluation reserve 

23. CASH (UTILISED) GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Surplus 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Finance income 
Assets written off 

Movements in provisions 

Operating leases 
Movement in deposits held 

Changes in working capital: 

Inventories 
Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other payables 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

2016 2015 
R R 

17 897 751 

107 565 013 
422 189 

17 897 751 

107 950 538 
422 189 

125 884 953 126 270 478 

11 763 855 5 522 938 

6 265 417 6 312 922 

(7 121 965) (5 847 894) 
64 185 16 771 

6 855 8 664 

223 232 
(25 329) (113 226) 

245 784 (54 215) 
(1 066 659) 696 701 

(6 314 157) 6 855 862 

47 334 963 (14 195 375) 

51 376181 (796 852) 
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24. LEASES

Operating leases - as lessee 

Minimum lease payments due 

- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

- later than five years

Property rental lease expenses are represented by Jetty 1 rentals and office space. 

2016 2015 
R R 

3 987 597 
13 097 910 

529 915 

17 615 42 2 

3 742 695 
2 989 303 

6 731 998 

The effect of straight lining the operating lease relating to office space was an increase of expenses in the statement of 

financial performance of R 6 426. The effect on the statement of financial position was an increase in liabilities of R 6 426. 

A lease incentive has been offered to RIM from V and A waterfront for improvements made to the office. The total amount of 
the incentive was R 223 OOO. The effect of straight lining the operating lease incentive relating to office space was a decrease 

of expenses in the statement of financial performance of R 6 194. The effect on the statement of financial position was an 

increase in non current liabilities of R 7 4 333 and an increase in non-current liablities of R 142 473. 

Minimum lease payments due (Office equipment rentals) 

- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

151 944 
227 916 

379 860 

263 217 

263 217 

Office equipment leases comprises of photocopy machines. Photocopy machine leases are negotiated for an average of five 

years and additional fees are payable based on the number of photo copies made during the period. 

Operating leases - as lessor (Income) 

Minimum lease payments due 

- within one year

- in second to fifth year inclusive

1 092 851 

2 065 757 

3 158 608 

1 030 991 

3 158 608 

4189 599 

The entity leases out fixed property on two leases. The leases were classified as operating leases. The Docks Restaurant 

property is currently not being leased. The operating lease relating to Tigers Eye was renewed in the 2013/14 financial year. 
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25. CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities 

Uhuru Communications CC 
Lethulwazi Consulting Services CC 

Current period surplus 

2016 2015 
R R 

11 763 855 

11 763 855 

919 558 
360 015 

5 522 938 

6 802 511 

Uhuru Communications CC claim has been dormant for the past six years; it is highly unlikely that either party will reinstate 

their claim in the future. Therefore the contingency has been removed for the 2016 financial year. Litigation was instituted 
against Uhuru which resulted in Uhuru counter-suing Robben Island Museum for losses incurred from partnering with the 

Museum for the RI African Festival. 

Lethulwazi Consulting Services CC has withdrawn their claim in the current financial year. 

A written request has been submitted to National Treasury in order to retain the current years surplus in terms of S 53(3) of the 

Public Finance Management Act. The outcome that Robben Island Museum will be required to repay the surplus is highly 
unlikely. 

Contingent asset 
Department of Arts and Culture 12 519 OOO 

The Department of Arts & Culture (DAC) intended to transfer the amount prior to year end in respect of capital works. Due to an 

error in processing the payment, the payment received was R12.5M short in the 2014/15 financial year. DAC needed the 
necessary approval to roll over the amount from national treasury in order to transfer the shortfall in the new financial year. The 

amount was received in the 2015/16 financial year. The amount received will be accounted for as an unconditional grant 

received. 

26. RELATED PARTIES

Related party transactions 

Departmement of Arts and Culture 

Conditional grants Received 

Unconditional grants received 

MTEF allocated DAC operational grant received (unconditional) 

41 099 707 

12 519 OOO 

68 419 OOO 

16 590 720 

65 414 OOO 

DAC is the controlling authority of the Museum. The following government grants were received from DAC for earmarked funds 
included in the medium term expenditure framework (MTEF). 

Conditional grants received from the allocated medium term expenditure framework (MTEF) for specific purposes. 

Operational grants received from the allocated medium term expenditure framework (MTEF) for operational purposes. 

Unconditional grants received to be allocated toward island infrastructure and maintenance purposes. 
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27. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

2016 2015 
R R 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R325 384 (2015: R253 398) was incurred in the financial year. In 2016 a payment has 
been made to SARS of an amount of R325 384 relating to interest and penalties on long outstanding disputes with SARS. In 

2015 a SAMSA penalty of R18 767 was issued for certificate compliance, a traffic fine of R1 500 was incurred and interest of 

R842 was incurred from Transnet. In addition RIM was overcharged by R 232 289 by a supplier for security services. In 2014 a 
penalty of R38 839 was charged by SARS and R 4 137 by SAMSA as well as interest of R 272 by Transnet. In addition RIM 

was overcharged by a supplier for R 163 595 for security services. The SARS payment of R 325 384 and the security payments 

of R395 884 have been written off. The remainder of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure (R64 375) has been recommended 
to be written off by the finance committee. 

28. ACTUAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE VERSUS BUDGETED OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Variance explanations: 

28.1) The actual income exceeds the budget income by R0.24m due to an increased number of visitors to the Island. 

28.2) The actual income exceeds the budget income by R6.73m due to the aggressive scheduling of tours to maximise all 

opportunities and an increase in demand. 

28.3) The actual income is less than the budgeted income by R0.04m. 

28.4) The actual income exceeds the budget amount by R2.97m due to the recovery of expenses for facilities management 

related expenses on the island. 

28.5) The actual income exceeds the budgeted amount by R0.08m due to RIM recovering amounts relating to diesel. 

28.6) The actual amount exceeds the budgeted amount by R0.06m due to interest earned exceeding expectations. 

28.7) The actual amount exceeds the budgeted amount by R3.51 m due to unexpected alloations by DAC during the period. 

28.8) The actual expenditure was less than the budget by R0.18m 

28.9) The actual exceeded the budget by R1 .87M due to the useful lives of assets being re-assessed. 

28.10) The actual expenditure exceeded the budget by R0.33m due to penalties and interest being paid relating to disputes 

with SARS. 

28.11) The actual expense was less than budgeted by R2.61 m due to expenses being less than expected. The operating of 
RIM vessels during the fourth quarter also contributed towards the decrease in boat hire expense. 

The approved budget has been adjusted during the financial year ended 31 March 2016 . RIM's operating environment has 

changed considerably between preparation of the budget and the operating environment during the year. It has therefore been 

deemed necessary to adjust the 2015/16 budget for the current financial year in order to bring budget into line with the 
operation environment and adjust assumptions used in budget accordingly. The major assumptions which were affected relate 

to the following: a) Infrastructure facilities maintenance has been handed back to the Department of Public Works (DPW) with 

the result that RIM would no longer incur this expenditure. b) RIM's planned purchase of a new ready available ferry did not 
materialise, with the result that RIM had to increase reliance on hired of boats compared to what was planned c) Ticket Sales 

far exceeded expectations with the result of a material increase in revenue generated as well as the costs associated with 

transporting tourists to the Island (hire of boats). 
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2016 2015 
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29. EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND COUNCIL MEMBERS' EMOLUMENTS

Executive 

2016 Date appointed Date Resigned Basic salary Company Allowances Total 

contributions received 
S Mkhize - CEO 2010/11/01 2015/10/31 876 521 221 581 93 983 1 192 085 

MC Llale - CFO 2011/01/13 1 117 187 269 007 61 812 1 448 006 

P Taruvinga - CHO 2013/09/01 783 279 232 952 89 305 1 105 536 
BG Manana - Executive 2015/08/01 722 399 216 259 16 256 954 914 

Manager 

M Dada - Interim CEO 2015/11/01 840 OOO 10 078 850 078 

4 339 386 939 799 271 434 5 550 619 

2015 

S Mkhize - CEO 1 198 327 354 699 152 569 1 705 595 
MC Llale - CFO 1 057 943 243 274 58 533 1 359 750 

P Taruvinga - CHO 741 114 219 422 97 368 1 057 904 

2 997 384 817 395 308 470 4 123 249 

Council members 

Appointment Resignation Total 2016 Total 2015 

date date 

SB Buthelezi 2012/09/01 34 487 56 522 
R Abdullah 2010/03/24 19 196 88 504 

S Webster 2010/03/24 36 275 49 621 

M Dada 2010/03/15 12 736 48 959 
MSGwavu 2010/03/30 45 031 

GM Masuku 2010/03/15 23 767 30 278 

SA Mogoba 2010/03/30 2015/05/29 21 104 
N Motete 2010/03/15 2014/05/29 

L Mpahlwa 2010/03/30 23 767 49 492 

P Nefolovhodwe 2010/03/30 40 307 49 081 

08 Nqubelani 2010/03/24 
MM Gasela 2010/03/30 2014/06/08 

235 566 393 561 

Audit Committee 

Appointment Resignation Total 2016 Total 2015 
date date 

TF Mosololi 2012/12/01 30 342 21 169 

JM Laubscher 2012/12/01 13 808 17 448 
TNM Ntshiza 2012/12/01 13 808 17 448 

M Dada 2010/03/15 4 736 5 792 

P Nefolovhodwe 2010/03/30 9 728 3 488 

72 422 65 345 

Reimbursements 

S Webster 150 

P Nefolovhodwe 483 

JM Laubscher 7 961 12 262 

8 594 12 262 
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Materialit_y and Significance Framewor 
Applicable during the 2015/16 Financial Year 

1. Background

This document was developed to give effect to the May 2002 amendment to the Treasury Regulations, whereby the 
following new requirement was set for public entities: 

''For purposes of material [sections 50(7 ), 55(2) and 66(7) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)J and significant 
[section 54(2) of the PFMAJ, the accounting authority must develop and agree a framework of acceptable levels of 
materiality and significance with the relevant Executive Authority in consultation with the external auditors." 

[Section 28.1.5] 

Public entities are required to include the Materiality and Significance Framework in the Strategic Plan to be submitted 
to its Executive Authority. [TR 30.1.3] Further, the Materiality and Significance Framework must be detailed in the public 
entity's annual report. [TR 28.2 .1] 

No definitions for the concepts "material" and "significant" are included in either the PFMA or in the Treasury Regulations. 
Accordingly, in compiling this framework, guidance was sought from, inter-alia "Framework for the Preparation and 
Presentation of Financial Statements" (issued by the International Accounting Standards Board) which defines "Materiality" 
in the following terms: 

"Information is material if its omission or misstatement could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the size of the item or error judged in the particular circumstances 
of its omission or misstatement. Thus, materiality provides a threshold or cut-off point, rather than being a primary 
qualitative characteristic which information must have if it is to be useful." 

Further guidance was drawn from the International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 320, "Audit Materiality" (issued by the 
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board) on the Public Sector Perspective: 

"In assessing materiality, the public sector auditor must, in addition to exercising professional judgment, consider any 
legislation or regulation which may impact that assessment. 

In the public sector, materiality is also based on the "context and nature" of an item and includes, for example, sensitivity 
as well as value. Sensitivity covers a variety of matters such as compliance with authorities, legislative concern or public 
interest. 11 

The reference to "economic" decisions in the "Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements" 
is therefore, assessed as not being conclusive or wholly appropriate to a public entity such at the Robben Island Museum 
(RIM). 

Further, materiality can be based on a number of financial indicators. Detailed below is an indicative table of financial 
indicators of the type that is widely accepted in the accounting profession as basis for calculating materiality. 

Gross Revenue 0.25 -1% 

Gross Surplus 1 -2% 

Net Surplus 2.5-10% 

Equity 2-5%

Total assets 0.5-2% 

Applicable; being Grants received, ticket sales and interest income 

Applicable; being excess of grants over operating and capital expenditure. 

Applicable; being construction funding not applied during financial year. 

Not Applicable 

Applicable; being construction cost (plus capitalised research and development 
cost and office infrastructure.) 
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2. Broad Framework for Robben Island Museum

RIM will be dealing with this framework under two main categories, being quantitative and qualitative aspects. 

2.1 Quantitative aspects 

Materiality level 

The Museum assesses the level of a material loss as being 0.25% of estimated budgeted expenditure. 

Motivation 

It is recognised that different levels of materiality can be set for different classes of transactions. RIM has, however, taken 
the approach of setting a more conservative materiality level that will be used for all classes of transactions. 

Factors considered 

In determining the said materiality value as 0.25% of gross expenditure (operating cost plus capital expenditure), RIM 
took into account factors that include: 

Nature of RIM's business 

Revenue: Funding for the Museum primarily comprise grants received from the Department of Arts and Culture; own 
generated income from tourism activities (ticket sales) together with interest earned on investments in deposit accounts 
as well as grants from donors. 

Expenditure: Given the nature of RIM to be an entity mandated to construct and maintain physical structures and house 
intellectual property, preference is given to gross expenditure as basis of defining the level of materiality. 

Statutory requirements applicable to the RIM 

• RIM is a project funded by the Department of Arts and Culture; approval for its formation having been obtained in
terms of sec 38(1) (m) of the PFMA.

• The Museum has been listed as a PFMA Schedule 3A public entity.

• The Council of the Museum is required to execute the mandate in terms of the of the Cultural Institutions' Act.

The Museum accordingly elects to give preference to a lower level of materiality (i.e. closer to the lower level of the 
acceptable percentage range) due to it being so closely governed by various acts and the public accountability responsibility 
it has to stakeholders. 

The control and inherent risks associated with RIM 

In assessing the control risk RIM concluded that a materiality level of 0.25% of expenditure is appropriate and prudent. 
This assessment is based on the fact that a sound control environment is being maintained. In this regard cognisance 
was given to amongst other matters: 

• Proper and appropriate governance structures have been established that include a Management
Committee, CEO and CFO.

• CEO and CFO positions have been created with specific risk management responsibilities;

• An audit committee that closely monitors the control environment of RIM was established;

• The function of internal audit was outsourced to a firm of professional internal auditors; and

• A three year Internal Audit Coverage Plan, based on annual risk assessments being performed. This is annually
reviewed and agreed by the audit committee.
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3. RIM General Approach to Qualitative Aspects

Materiality is not confined to the size of the entity and the elements of its financial statements. 

The Museum recognises that misstatements that are large either individually or in the aggregate may affect a "reasonable" 
user's judgement. Further, misstatements may also be material on qualitative grounds. These qualitative grounds include 
amongst other: 

• New ventures that RIM may enter into.

• Unusual transactions entered into that are not of a repetitive nature and are disclosable purely due to the nature
thereof due to knowledge thereof affecting the decision making of the user of the financial statements.

• Transactions entered into that could result in reputational risk to RIM.

• Any fraudulent or dishonest behaviour of an officer or staff of RIM.

• Any infringement of the RIM's agreed performance levels.

• Procedures/processes required by legislation or regulation (e.g. PFMA and the Treasury Regulations).

• Unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

• Items of a non-financial nature, which would impact on the continued operation and deliverables of the Museum.

The policy contained in this framework will be appropriately presented in the Annual Report of the Museum as required. 

Definitions and Abbreviations 

Accounting Authority: Robben Island Museum Council 

Executive Authority: Department of Arts and Culture 

Entity: Robben Island Museum 

PFMA: Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by act 29 of 1999) 

Treasury Regulations: Public Finance Management Act, 1999: amendment ofTreasury Regulations in 
Terms of Section 76 as published in Government Gazette No. 7372 

4. Detailed/Specific RIM Responses to Requirements

4.1 RIM Response to Fiduciary duties of the Accounting Authority Requirements 

The accounting authority must (c) on request, disclose to the Executive Authority responsible for that public entity 
or the legislature to which the public entity is accountable, all material facts, including those reasonable discoverable, 
which in any way influence the decisions or actions of the executive authority or that legislature. 

None Any fact discovered of which the amount 1. Any item or event of which specific 
exceeds the determined materiality figure disclosure is required by law 
as calculated under par 2.1 

2. Any fact discovered of which its omission
or misstatement, in the Council's opinion,
could influence the decisions or actions of
the executive authority or legislature.
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4.2 RIM Response to Annual Report and Financial Statements Requirement 

General/Principal Requirement (PFMA section 55) 
The annual report and financial statements referred to in subsection (1) (d) must (a) fairly present the state of affairs 
of the public entity, its business, its financial results, its performance against predetermined objectives and its financial 
position as at the end of the financial year concerned: 

(a) include particulars of:

(i) any material losses through criminal
conduct and any irregular expenditure and
fruitless and wastefur expenditure that
occurred during the financial year:

(ii) any criminal or disciplinary steps taken
consequence of such losses or irregular
expenditure or fruitless and wasteful
expenditure;

(iii) any losses recovered or written off;

(iv) any financial assistance received from
the state and commitments made by the
state on its behalf; and

(v) any other matters that may be prescribed.

1. Losses through criminal conduct: any
loss identified.

2. Losses through irregular, fruitless, wasteful 
expenditure: Wnere combined total exceeds
the planning materiality figure used by the
external auditors for the year under review.

All identified losses through criminal 
conduct will be disclosed. 

4.3 RIM Response to Information to be submitted by Accounting Authority Requirement 

General/Principal Requirement (PFMA section 54) 
Before a public entity concludes any of the following transactions, the accounting authority for the public entity must 
promptly and in writing inform the relevant treasury of the transaction and submit relevant particulars of the transaction 
to its executive authority for approval of the transaction: 

(b) participation in a significant partnership, A cut-off figure of RSOOO
trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar
arrangement.

(c) acquisition or disposal of a significant Qualitative aspect is more relevant
shareholding in a company.

(d) acquisition or disposal of a significant Qualitative aspect is more relevant
asset.

(e) Commencement or cessation of a
significant business activity.

Qualitative aspect is more relevant 

Any participation, outside of the approved 
strategic plan and budget. 

Any acquisition or disposal, outside of the 
approved strategic plan and budget. 

1. Any asset that would increase or decrease 
the overall operational functions of the
Museum, outside of the approved strategic
plan and budget.

2. Disposal of the major part of the assets
of the Museum.

Any business activity that would increase 
or decrease the overall operational functions 
of the Museum, outside of the approved 
strategic plan and budget. 
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State of Conservation Repo 
Executive Summary 
Robben Island Museum Council, as the Management Authority of Robben Island Museum and World Heritage Site 
submits the State of Conservation Report as required in terms of Para 169 of the Operational Guidelines. The SOC provides 
a progress report on the implementation of 2nd Integrated Conservation Plan (2013-2018) submitted to the WHC through 
the Department of Environmental Affairs, representing the State Party of South Africa to the World Heritage Convention. 

Progress made in the implementation of the 2nd ICMP 
The implementation of the 2nd ICMP has mixed results as shown in the attached table based on the implementation 
plan of the 2nd ICMP. The analysis categorizes performance under the following categories; completed projects (yes), 
completed projects but continuing in the outer years of the ICMP (yes and recurring), incomplete projects and being 
carried forward (partial), projects not done (no), projects to be implemented in outer years of the ICMP (pending) and 
projects deferred permanently (suspended). 

Implementation Status: Robben Island 

2nd ICMP 

Pending Suspended Yes 
5% 1% 14% 

Yes & recurring 
12% 

The above reflects that only 26% has been achieved with 14% accounting for fully achieved targets, while 12% is 
attributed to recurring but achieved targets. This performance is below 24% of the overall targets of the 2nd ICMP, which 
is now left with two years of implementation. Most of the targets have not been met (37%) due to the fact that some 
should be implemented in the remaining outer years of the 2nd ICMP, with 6% pending and 1 % suspended. This scenario 
is attributed to inconsistent funding for the 2nd ICMP, due to the cyclical or seasonal revenue flow for RIM. This flow is 
dependent on the ferry operation, which rarely operated smoothly under the period of review. Under the same period, 
alternative funding was sourced for some programmes, e.g. from National Department of Tourism (NOT) and African 
World Heritage Fund (AWHF). Also, the lack of skills and capacity within the support structures did affect the implementation 
of the 2nd ICMP. As per the ICMP, the following key management positions were filled; Chief Heritage Officer, Executive 
Manager: Infrastructure and Facilities, (Built Environment & Municipal services), Senior Managers; Heritage & Research, 
Education and Marketing-Tourism, as well as supportive unit managers. Furthermore, RIM is undertaking a reorganizational 
review of the institution in order to have a functional structure supported with appropriate skills. This exercise will be 
completed in March 2016. 

The maintenance of the Built Environment is back on track and is now guided by a Tripartite Agreement among RIM, 
Department of Arts and Culture (DAC), and the Department of Public Works (DPW). DPW is now fully mandated to 
implement the Facility Management Plan and Capital Works in compliance with Heritage protocols under the supervision 
of RIM. This process is informed by the User Asset Management Plan (UAMP), which is updated on an annual basis by 
the Management Authority. The development of the Built Environment Manual for the site is scheduled for completion 
by December 2016. The blue stone quarry site will be restored by December 2016 following the issuance of Environmental 
Permit (from Department of Environmental Affairs-DEA) and Heritage Permit (from South African Heritage Resources 
Agency-SAHRA) in 2015. The overall maintenance programme has progressed at a limited scale due to transitional 
arrangements leading to the finalisation of the Tripartite Agreement, as well as the delayed release of related financial 
resources by both DAC and DPW. The UAMP is now the basis of budgeting and implementing phased maintenance work 
on the island. 

The Management Authority recognises the support from the Department of Arts & Culture, Department of Environmental 
Affairs (South Africa), South African Heritage Resources Agency (South Africa), the African World Heritage Fund (AWHF), 
the World Heritage Centre and Advisory Bodies, in particular ICOMOS, and various heritage experts in implementing 
the 2nd ICMP. 

Management Authority remains committed to implementing the World Heritage Convention in the context of Robben 
Island. 
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State of Conservation Repo 
Name of property & ID Number: Robben Island 

Year of inscription: 1 999 

Inscription criteria: (iii), (iv) 

Previous Committee decisions: 27COM 7B.34 - Robben Island (South Africa) 
28COM 15B.40 - Robben Island (South Africa) 
29COM 78.39 - Robben Island (South Africa) 
30COM 7B.44 - State of Conservation (Robben Island) 
31COM 7B.53 - Robben Island (South Africa) 
33COM 7B.50 - Robben Island (Republic of South Africa) (C 916) 

UNESCO Extra budgets: N/A 

Previous Monitoring measures 
2004: Joint ICOMOS/ICCROM/IUCN mission; 2005: joint ICOMOS/IUCN mission 
2011: Joint World Heritage Centre/lCOMOS reactive monitoring mission (March 2011) 

Factors affecting the property 

Based on the previous State of Conservation (SOC) reports submitted to the World Heritage Committee, the following 
factors are presented in a historical manner; 

2003-2004 

• Effects arising from use of transportation infrastructure

• Fishing/collecting aquatic resources

• Human resources

• Illegal activities

• Impacts of tourism / visitor / recreation

• Interpretative and visitation facilities

• Invasive/alien terrestrial species

• Management systems/ management plan

• Solid waste

• Other Threats: Natural values and cultural landscape qualities are not yet reflected in the islands management structure
and conservation priorities

2005-2008 

• Financial resources

• Human resources

• Impacts of tourism / visitor / recreation

• Management systems/ management plan

• Other Threats: a) Difficulties with operational aspects of maintenance and conservation implementation; b) Lack of
appropriate conservation of the built heritage; c) Lack of integration of natural values in management of site
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State of Conservation Repo 
From previous SOC 

• Visitors pressure;

• Lack of comprehensive Conservation Management Plan ;

• Lack of specific annual plans of operation; lack of human resources ;

• Difficulties with operational aspects of maintenance and conservation implementation including lack of preventive
maintenance funding and programming ;

• Lack of appropriate conservation of the built heritage ;

• Lack of proactive management of tourism pressure ;

• Lack of integration of natural values in management of site .

2009-2010 

• Human resources

• Impacts of tourism/ visitor/ recreation

• Management systems/ management plan

• Other Threats:

• Difficulties with operational aspects of maintenance and conservation implementation including lack of preventive
maintenance funding and programming

• Lack of appropriate conservation of the built heritage

Factors affecting the property identified in previous reports 
a) Visitor pressure;

b) Lack of comprehensive Conservation management plan;

c) Lack of specific annual plans of operation;

d) Difficulties with operational aspects of maintenance and conservation implementation including lack of preventive
maintenance funding and programming;

e) Lack of appropriate conservation of the built heritage;

f) Lack of proactive management of tourism pressure;

g) Lack of integration of natural values in management of the property;

h) Need for organizational restructuring of the management authority for the property.
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State of Conservation Repo 
Progress on implementing the Recommendations of the Joint World Heritage Centre/lCOMOS 
reactive monitoring mission (March 2011) 

Since 2011, RIM has recorded considerable progress in the stabilisation of the institutional/managerial aspects of the 
Management Authority, including implementation of the 12 point recommendations made by the World Heritage 
Committee. This includes the finalisation of the 2nd Integrated Conservation Plan (ICMP), appointment of the Chief 
Heritage Officer, Senior Managers for Heritage, Education and Marketing-Tourism to drive the implementation of the 
ICMP, the transfer of the maintenance of built environment from Department of Public Works (DPW) to RIM, Structural 
re-organisation to ensure the ICMP is delivered and the numerous partnerships entered into between RIM and several 
academic and government institutions. Below is the status of implementation summarised for each recommendation;-

Appointment of a Site CHO appointed in September 2013 
Manager/Chief Heritage 
Officer (SM/CHO) at COO Executive Manager Estates appointed in July 2015 
level within 6 months. 

Recommendation 2 

An adequately resourced and 
timely review of the ICMP by 
external professionals/advisers 
is needed, to be completed 
by February 2012. Ensure that 
annual action plans fully 
implement the ICMP. 

Recommendation 2 

An adequately resourced and 
timely review of the ICMP by 
external professionals/advisers 
is needed, to be completed 
by February 2012. Ensure that 
annual action plans fully 
implement the ICMP. 

Recommendation 3 

Identification of a senior 
executive who is accountable 
and responsible for visitor 
management is also needed 
within 6 months. A key priority 
is to improve visitor 
arrival/intro exhibition at 
NMG, on board ferry and at 
Murrays harbour. 
Responsibility for the review 
and the implementation of the 
Visitor Management Plan 
(within the ICMP) should be 
identified in Strategic Plan. 

Three (3) Senior Managers appointed in 2014/15 

Achieved 

The 2nd ICMP (2013-18) was completed in 2012 and is now fully operational 
with the following component: Operational Management Plan, Visitor Management 
Plan, Interpretation Plan, Natural Environment Management Plan and the 
Implementation Plan. 

The 2nd ICMP was approved by DAC in 2012 and DEA in 2013. At an operational 
and implementation level, the 2nd ICMP informs the current and subsequent 
Annual Performance Plans of RIM. 

Achieved 

The 2nd ICMP (2013-18) was completed in 2012 and is now fully operational 
with the following component: Operational Management Plan, Visitor Management 
Plan, Interpretation Plan, Natural Environment Management Plan and the 
Implementation Plan. 

The 2nd ICMP was approved by DAC in 2012 and DEA in 2013. At an operational 
and implementation level, the 2nd ICMP informs the current and subsequent 
Annual Performance Plans of RIM. 

Achieved 

Senior Managers for Marketing-Tourism appointed in 2013 with a responsibility 
for implementing the Visitor Management Plan of the 2nd ICMP. 

Exhibitions at Nelson Mandela Gateway (NMG), Murray Harbour were completed. 
On board exhibitions await purchase of new Ferries by the Management Authority 
as guided by procurement process. Photographic Exhibitions have been mounted 
inside the prison sections since 2012, while the NMG Video Mural was completed 
in early 2014 for visitor orientation. Temporary exhibitions are being mounted at 
NMG e.g. Mandela in Dublin, Mandela 27 etc 

Visitor arrival;-The Management Authority is in the process of implementing an 
optimisation plan for the Nelson Mandela Gateway, and this is expected to be 
completed by 2017. Architectural plans and options for optimisation are now going 
through the approval process by the various stakeholders. The Management Authority 
continues to train Information Officers and Tour Guides on the narrative and service 
excellence in collaboration with National Department of Tourism (NOT). This has 
assisted in improving services to all visitors. 
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Identification of responsibility 
for interpretation at a senior 
level is needed immediately 
and an appropriate 
identification of long term 
responsibility and action in 
the Strategic Plan. 

Recommendation 5 

A fundamental requirement 
for World Heritage Site is a 
Disaster Preparedness Plan. 

Senior Managers for Heritage and Education appointed in 2014 with full responsibility 
for implementing an inclusive and holistic narrative in line Interpretation Plan of 
the 2nd ICMP. Tour Guiding Manual was reviewed to present the multiple and 
multi-layered values of the site, including linking the narrative with the broader 
history of Liberation struggle in South Africa. 

Tour Guide training, based on the new Manual, commenced in 2014 and now 
runs as an annual programme for both permanent and seasonal Tour guides. The 
Internal Interpretation Committee of the site brings together Heritage, Environmental 
and Archives to advice on the narrative. A stakeholder driven Strategic Research 
Agenda (SRA) is now in place to drive the research process for the site. 

In addition, a new website was launched in 2014, while brief and pilot audio
visual narratives of Ex-Political Prisoners have been posted on the website to 
compliment medium of narratives available to visitors. 

Partially achieved 

An Integrated Disaster Risk Preparedness Plan (IDRP) for Robben Island is being 
developed with financial support from the African World Heritage Fund (AWHF). 
The IDRP should be completed by March 2016. A holistic and multi-sectorial 
stakeholder approach is being used to produce the plan for both island based and 
mainland aspects of the site, such as Mayibuye Archives, Jetty I (original boarding 
place), and the transportation ferries. 

A Senior Manager: Risk Assessment and Compliance, was appointed in 2014 and 
will assist in profiling all organisational risks and formulate possible mitigation 
measures as part of developing an Integrated Disaster Risk Preparedness Plan. The 
Integrated Disaster Preparedness Plan, once completed will inform annual mitigation 
plans. 

In the interim, the following has been achieved in order to mitigate potential risks; 
• Controlled burn projects: RIM is minimising fire risks at the Island through
maintaining fire breaks and controlled burning of tonnes of dead-wood under
supervision of the City of Cape Town, Fire Department (Fire and Rescue Unit).
Through this partnership, RIM has managed to secure permits every year to
carry out the burn projects, including transfer of skills in fire fighting and using
related equipment to RIM employees. Portable fire fighting equipment was been
purchased by RIM in 2013 to deal with any incidental fires that may occur on
the Island.

• Disposal of legacy waste:-RIM disposed all legacy waste on the Island under
a well controlled and permit proven project called "disposal of legacy waste"
approved by SARHA. Potential heritage objects were separated from the legacy
debris dumped on the Island over the years by DPW for proper accessioning.
This project created more than 80 temporary jobs for unemployed and previously
disadvantaged youth of South Africa.

• Diesel Storage Facility Management Plan:- RIM developed an interim "Diesel
Storage Facility Management Plan" in 2014 to ensure compliance to all relevant
legislations and this was endorsed by Department of Environmental Affairs (South
Africa) as an addendum to the 2nd ICMP.

• Policing of the buffer zone, a nautical mile around the lsland;-lllegal activities
which used to occur within a nautical mile around the Island is now under
control through a partnership between the Management Authority and Department
of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry (DAFF), Chief Directorate Monitoring,
Control and Surveillance. DAFF polices the nautical mile around the Island,
with their Inspectors operating from the Island using advanced surveillance
equipment (i.e. speed boat, thermal imager etc).
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State of Conservation Repo 
UNESCO Status of Implementation Achieved Partial Pending 

Recommendation -
Recommendation 6 

A use plan has to be developed 
for the built heritage based 
on detailed architectural 
survey, documentation and 
condition assessment is 
needed. The conservation 
architect should be requested 
to conduct this work and 
supported with the needed 
equipment. 

Recommendation 7 

Completion of moveable 
objects catalogue of items on 
island, in Defence areas, 
separation of RI provenanced 
collections from props 
purchased for exhibitions is 
needed within 6 months. 

Recommendation 8 

Consultation and definition 
of the role of EPPs as "living 
artefacts of the site" in site 
management and 
interpretation is needed, 
including a clearer structural 
relationship between reference 
group/CEO and management. 
Discussion should commence 
immediately. 

Recommendation 9 

Develop a clear role for 
SAHRA in the management 
of the OUV of RIM, perhaps 
as ex-officio member of the 
RIM Council, or as an 
adviser/party to the SLA with 
DPW regarding conservation 
and maintenance or by 
reactivating the existing MOU 
for the Heritage Advisory 
Committee. An MOU for the 
excellent maritime 
archaeology programme has 
been developed but SAHRA 
also has a role to assist in 
corporate continuity of 
conservation more generally 
for RIM. Linkages with other 
local heritage bodies such as 
the Cape Town Heritage Trust 
and ICOMOS South Africa 
may be similarly helpful to 
RIM, for example as 
professional development. 

Achieved 

An Executive Manager for Infrastructure and Facilities was appointed in July 2015 
to spearhead this process. This process is informed by the User Asset Management 
Plan (UAMP), which is updated on an annual basis by the Management Authority. 

RIM is analysing Expression of Interest (EOI) on the adaptive re-use of the Island 
designed to offer compatible and World Heritage friendly products and services 
for the benefit of tourists. The Adaptive re-use will not compromise any applicable 
national and international heritage protocol and is benchmarked with study tours 
undertaken by RIM to Goree Island (Senegal), St Elmina Castle and the Cape Coast 
Castle (Ghana), Lamu Island (Kenya) in 2013. 

The development of the Built Environment Manual for the site is scheduled for 
completion by December 2016 to support this process and good practices in 
preserving the attributes of the site. 

Achieved 

The Collections Management Policy review was finalised in 2013, including the 
GRAP 103 policy completed in 2014 in compliance with the Treasury Financial 
Accounting Instructions. A comprehensive Heritage Asset Register for all moveable 
Heritage collections (assets) on Island and at Mayibuye Collections. 

Digitisation of U-matic tape collection for preservation and access has been derailed 
by lack of funding but is now prioritised for 2016/17 financial year. 

Achieved 

The Ex Political Prisoners (EPP) Reference Groups are now constantly engaging 
with RIM on the narrative and related issues. 

The EPP User Agreement, addressing issues around the intellectual property rights 
and governing the use of the narratives given by EPPs is in its final stage, and will 
be completed by March 2016. 

Processing of EPP reference groups: production and distribution of recordings from 
the EPP Reference Group is on-going in order to improve engagement with EPPs 
and diversify the narrative offered to visitors. 

While maintaining relationship with EPPs remains a priority for the site in its life 
time, the World Heritage Committee should note that managing relationships with 
EPPs has its own internalised challenges and sometimes this derails finalisation 
of agreements. 

Achieved 

MoU between RIM and SAHRA:-a draft MoU between RIM and the South African 
Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) is in the process of being finalised. In addition, 
SAHRA will be represented on the Heritage Sub Committee meetings of RIM 
Council as provided in the OMP of the 2nd ICMP. SAHRA is already actively 
advising RI on conservation issues. 

Other MoUs were signed between RIM and AWHF, as well with similar sites in 
Mauritius, while MoUs with Goree Island (Senegal), St Elmina Castle (Ghana) and 
Lamu Island (Kenya) are being finalised through bilateral engagements between 
South Africa and respective countries. 
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Develop a relationship with Relationship with CapeNature:-RIM has always recognised and maintained a 
CapeNature to map sensitivity relationship with CapeNature as both the competent authority in environmental 
and develop guidelines for the management and a trend setter in biodiversity conservation (in the Western Cape). 
management of the cultural CapeNature played a crucial role in the formulation of RIM's Environmental Management 
landscape of Robben Island. Plan (2013-2018), which is an integral part of the approved 2nd ICMP. CapeNature 

Recommendation 11 

Urgent intervention work is 
needed at the limestone quarry 
and to the Garrison Church 
harling. An assessment of the 
value of locating RIM heritage 
and conservation staff in island 
offices should be undertaken. 

Recommendation 12 

Include ICMP as a reference 
in all relevant tender 
documents and contracts 
pertaining to maintenance and 
building/ infrastructure works 
on the property to ensure 
tenderers and workers are fully 
aware of the conservation 
values of the site. 

continues to provide advise to RI. 

RIM has also entered into and maintained the following partnerships with academic 
and government institutions to support the environmental management of the 
property; University of Cape Town MoU, Earthwatch, Environmental Affairs- Oceans 
and Coasts and SANCCOB, as well as the University of Stellenbosch. 

RIM has prioritised the formulation of a Zonation/land use Plan, by the end of 
May 2016. 

Partially Achieved 

Blue stone quarry project;- Environmental Impact Assessment Report (including 
the Heritage Impact Assessment) was approved in early 2015 and restoration is 
now scheduled for completion by 2016/17 financial year. 

Garrison church restoration;-is scheduled to be restored by March 2016; 

Value of locating RIM heritage and conservation staff in island offices; Assessment 
was done in 2013 and RIM has deliberately encouraged critical key personnel 
to reside and operate from the Island. The number of occupancy is regulated as 
semi-permanent to allow optimal experience for visitors. 

Partially Achieved 

The ICMP is included in all tender documents and contracts for maintenance and 
construction as evidenced by Supply Chain Process documents posted on the RIM 
website. 
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State of Conservation Repo 
REVIEW OF THE IMPMENTATION PLAN OF THE 2nd ICMP 

This section of the SOC report summarises the progress made in implementing the 2nd ICMP, wherein each target is 
reviewed. The implementation of the 2nd ICMP has mixed results as shown in the attached table based on the 
implementation plan of the 2nd ICMP. The analysis categorizes performance under the following categories; completed 
projects (yes), completed projects but continuing in the outer years of the ICMP (yes and recurring), incomplete projects 
and being carried forward (partial), projects not done (no), projects to be implemented in outer years of the ICMP (pending) 
and projects deferred permanently (suspended). 

Below is the progress report on the implementation of the ICMP in 2013-15 

Table 1: Actions to Implement the Operational Management Plan 

1.1 Appoint appropriate heritage Immediate 2013-2018 CHO CHO was appointed in September 2013 on a 
conservation expertise to fulfil the role three year contract and is responsible for the 
of Chief Heritage Officer (CHO), implementation of the 2nd ICMP. Annual budget 
responsible for the effective is recurring until end of contract. 
implementation of heritage protection 
measures and interpretation projects 

1.2 Appoint appropriate project High Immediate coo No appointment made yet, and RIM is undergoing 
management expertise to fulfil the role an organizational restructuring, and this matter 
of Chief Operations Officer (COO) will be resolved by 2015/16. 
and establish a Project Management 
Unit (PMU), working across RIM as 
an integrating factor and 
implementation mechanism 

1.3 Appoint business development High 2013 Unit A Senior Manager for Marketing and Tourism was 
specialist for events and conferences appointed on a three year contract in April 2014 
development and establish a Business and is responsible for special events and conferences 
Unit development. An adaptive re-use programme for 

the island is being developed. Annual budget is 
recurring until end of contract. 

1.4 Strengthen working relations and High 2013-2018 Working RIM has renewed and entered into formal 
communications with RIM stakeholders relations agreements with several institutions during the 
and partners through conducting a period under review. These include the following 
well facilitated inter-departmental MoUs; 
stakeholder workshop • Tourism Stakeholder meeting (March 2015)

1.5 Review of institutional framework, High 2013 Single SLA A draft MoU exists between RIM and SAHRA for 
gaps, opportunities and establishing heritage management, and will be finalised in 
a clustered service level agreement 2015/16. 
(SLA) with DAC, supported in function 
by SAHRA in terms of development Tripartite Agreement binding DAC, RIM and DPW 
guidance, and DPW in terms of on infrastructure management has been finalised 
municipal level service provision, etc. and signed by all Parties in June 2016. An SLA 

between DPW and COEGA has been signed to 
service RIM as a client co funded by both DAC 
and DPW in line with respective mandates. 

Discussion with City of Cape Town is on-going 
to find areas of possible cooperation. 

1.6 Conduct Organisational Review High 2013 Report Service Provider to conduct skills audit and 
internally within RIM restructuring has been appointed, and completion 

is targeted March 2016. 

1.7 Review DPW Capital Projects High 2013 Report The DPW Capital projects are reviewed and funding 
made available for every year under the Tripartite 
Agreement binding RIM, DAC and DPW. The 
User Asset Management Plan (UAMP) is reviewed 
on an annual basis. 

1.8 Establish the Robben Island High 2013 Forum Consultative Forums are being established by RIM 
Consultative Forum and these are being approached in a thematic 

way to inform an integrated Consultative Forum 
for RIM by 2015/16. The following thematic forum 
have been established; 

• Research Agenda Forum (March 2015)
• EPP Reference Group
• Tour Operators Forum (March 2015)
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Commission the compilation of a Report Not yet developed, but will be part of the 
Development Plan to unify efforts and Infrastructure and Marketing-Tourism Development 
prioritise special projects Plan earmarked for 2016/17. 

1.10 Commission the compilation of a Built High 2013 Report Not yet done due to transitional challenges from 
Environment Conservation Manual DPW to RIM, and currently from RIM back to 

DPW, and this is coupled with lack of adequate 
staff for this function within RIM. An Executive 
Manager for Infrastructure and Facilities was 
recruited in July 2015 to spearhead this process. 

1.11 Commission the compilation of a High 2013 Report Revised Collections Policy & Procedures manual 
Collections Management Plan completed, including a section on GRAPl 03. 

This policy was approved in the first quarter of 
2015/16. 

1.12 Commission the compilation of a User High 2013 Report User asset management plan and project plans 
Asset Management Plan compiled each year and submitted to DAC. 

1.13 Commission the compilation of a User High 2013 Report The UAMP provides for Facility management 
Asset Management Plan contracting and is implemented by DPW. The 

transitional arrangements leading to the Tripartite 
Agreement delayed implementation of projects. A 
phased approach, which is aligned to the capacity 
of DPW to implement projects, has been adopted. 
A Steering Committee comprising RIM, DAC and 
DPW oversees the implementation of the Plan, with 
Operations Committee handling the daily activities. 

1.14 Appoint the necessary built Immediate 2013 Maintenance An Executive Manager for Infrastructure and 
environment specialist for immediate Facilities was appointed in July 2015. Recruitment 
maintenance needs, until the Facilities of a Senior Manager; built environment should 
Maintenance Contract has commenced be finalised by March 2016. Currently, a Facilities 

Manager appointed in October 2013 supports 
the Executive Office. 

1.15 Formalise and commence the Facilities Urgent 2013-2018 Maintenance A Tripartite Agreement among RIM, DAC and DPW 
Maintenance Contract was finalised and in June 2015. It provides the 

formal arrangements and framework for Facilities 
Maintenance. 

1.16 Power distribution upgrade and Medium 2013-2014 Upgrade RIM commissioned a condition assessment through 
operation LCCPM and recommendations are in place. The 

power distribution upgrade will be implemented 
in 2015/16 by DPW/COEGA 

1.17 Repair and maintenance to Water and Medium 2013-2014 Maintenance Repair and Maintenance of Water and sewerage 
Sewage Services services were done in 2014/15 with the membranes 

being replaced and water quality is being monitored 
on a regular basis. A condition assessment of the 
plant recommended that a new cost effective plant 
should be installed in 2015/16 by DPW/COEGA 

1.18 Re-establishment of the Mayibuye Immediate 2013-2018 Access PENDING and the matter has been brought to 
Archives at more accessible location the attention of the Tripartite Committee comprising 
that is feasible. DAORIM/DPW and options will be explored going 

forward. 

1.19 Archive Inventory development into High 2013 Database GRAP 103 - Heritage Assets register completed 
National Treasury requirements: and all items valued. The maintenance of the 
Phase 1 register is a priority. 

1.20 Establish Greenstone Collections High 2014,2016 Database Greenstone has been replaced by D-space 
Management Electronic Database electronic database in line with best practice guided 

by the South African Digitization Initiative funded 
by the NRF 

1.21 Install Fire Protection and Climate High 2013 Protection Access controls being improved and security 
Control at Mayibuye Archive system equipment, gas fire suppression systems scheduled 

for installation latest by March 2016.The water 
sprinkler system in the Audio Visual, Historical 
Papers and Photographic sections will be replaced 
with a gas fire suppressant system to avoid water 
damage in case of a fire. These matters have been 
discussed and agreed with UWC. 

1.22 Umatic Tape Collection transfer to High 2013 HD format Procurement process for this project was initiated 
higher definition format to preserve but funding was not available. RIM is exploring 
film footage alternative funding for this project 
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Establish a Cultural Landscape The Cultural Landscape Management Unit will 
Management Unit that can archive be established in 2015-17 and as part of 
all RIM reports and establish a fully implementing the recommendations of the research 
functional GIS facility, making agenda workshop held in March 2015. 
information easily accessible for the 
purpose of research and project 
planning and implementation 

1.24 Establish a Project Management Unit Immediate 2013 PMU Pending and subject to organisational review. 
that can monitor and assess all projects, There maybe need to expand capacity of this 
in terms of heritage conservation PMU if number of targets to be monitored is 
research, education, and/or tourism increased. 
project implementation, in order to 
strengthen information system to inform 
adaptive planning and organisational 
re-orientation 

1.25 Establish Performance Management Immediate 2013 PMU PMS was established in 2014/15 and is being 
System (PMS), which is linked to project implemented by RIM. All Senior Managers were 
management and allows for easy trained in implementing the PMS. 
access to financial and performance 
indicators, in order to plan more time 
effectively 

1.26 Assess the Murray Bay Diesel Storage High 2013 Report A condition assessment was made and a concept 
Tank and identify the way forward document produced in 2014/15. The sludge was 

removed from the holding tank but other 
improvements (e.g. calibration of diesel reader, 
new dip stick, new diesel hand pump etc) are 
underway and expected to be completed in 2016/17. 

1.27 Further establish Disaster Preparedness High 2013 Programme A Disaster Risk Team was established in 2014/15 
within RIM, keeping safety a primary with a view of coordinating the development of 
concern the Integrated Disaster Risk Plan for the site as 

a whole. A service provider will be appointed to 
assist. RIM has submitted fundraising documents 
on the project and is waiting for responses from 
potential donors 

1.28 Implement the Bluestone Quarry High 2013-2015 Seawall The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA), 
project (pending review) including Heritage Impact Assessment was 

conducted and submitted to SAHRNDEA. All 
these were granted in 2015 paving way for the 
restoration to take place in 2015/16. Preparatory 
and planning works for the project have 
commenced in this current financial year. 

1.29 Implement the Old Power Station High 2013-2018 Archive Decision was taken to rather have one consolidated Suspended 
(pending review) and dedicated collections/archival facility on the 

mainland. Maintaining two collections facilities 
would be too costly. The delays that occurred in 
implementing the Old Power Station Plan for storage 
on the Robben Island site also add to the escalation 
of renovating the building. This will be now linked 
to the alternative space for Mayibuye Archives. 

1.30 Implement the Limestone Quarry project High 2013-2015 Facilities This project will be implemented once approved Pending 
(pending review) by the DAC/RIM/DPW in the outer years of 2017/18. 

1.31 Review the Outrank Project Medium 2013 Report Nothing done yet but will be considered under Pending 
the proposed Adaptive re-use of the Island 

1.32 Review the Zinktronk Project Medium 2013 Report Nothing done yet but will be considered under Pending 
the proposed Adaptive re-use of the Island 

1.33 Review World War 2 Relics Project Very Low 2013 Report Nothing done yet but will be considered under Pending 
the proposed Adaptive re-use of the Island. 
Consultation with Armscor is ongoing and this 
has been handed over to DPW/COEGA. 

RIM ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16 



State of Conservation Repo 
Table 2: Actions to Implement the Interpretation Plan 

2.1 

Review and improve Public Heritage 
Education Programmes 

2.3 Review and update public education 
materials 

2.4 Establish partnership with the Education 
Department towards inclusion of 
Robben Island in the school 
curriculum, increasing exposure of 
RI to school-going youth 

2.5 Establish partnerships with tertiary 
institutions and review and enhance 
the African Heritage Management 
Studies programme 

2.6 Ensure that RIM staff receives heritage 
management training, including 
participate in exchange visits 

2.7 Monitor and evaluation the impact 
and effectiveness of the education 
interventions 

2.8 Establish the Wall of Remembrance 
Project, as unifying project in RIM 

2.9 Establish visitor orientation facilities 
and an exhibition spaces with the 
assistance of former prisoners, to allow 
the retention of cultural heritage, 
especially intangible and the 
preservation of the authenticity of the 
visitor experience. The exhibition space 
should allow for further interpretation 
from a wider perspective and various 
points of view and prepare visitors 
for an intimate visit with former 
prisoners 

2.10 Exhibitions Projects (G-Section 
Exhibition and DVD, Universal Access 
Policy, New MSP Exhibitions, NMG 
Courtyard Exhibition) 

High 

High 

High 

High 

High 

High 

High 

High 

High 

2013 

2013 

Research Department and Public Heritage 
Education Department are now forming the 
Interpretation Committee that discusses the 
narrative. 

Programme PHED programmes are reviewed on annual basis 
in line with the 2nd ICMP and New Business 
Model of RIM and this is a continuous process. 

Materials A limited number of educational materials have 
been updated and this will be intensified as 
programme and activity based process in the 
remaining years of the 2nd ICMP. 

2013-2014 Partnership An exploratory meeting with Department of Basic 
Education was held in September 2014 in order 
to establish the modalities of RIM-DBE partnership. 
This relationship expected to be finalised by March 
2016. 

2013 Partnership RIM did not establish formal partnerships with 

2013-2018 Trained 
staff 

2013-2018 Report 

2013-2014 Exhibition 

the tertiary institutions; 
• RIM and UWC are revising the current MoU
to ensure optimum, fair and equitable
opportunities and responsibilities in the
agreement. This will be finalised in 2015/16.

• The review of the APMHS programme is now
scheduled for the financial year 2016/17.

A new Tour Guiding Manual is now in place with 
a standard and holistic narrative. 

• All Tour Guides were trained using the new
Manual in 2015/16.

• Exchange visits are not possible due to financial 
limitations

Progress on the impact of interventions is being 
monitored and evaluated through quarterly reports. 
Some interventions have been suspended due to 
financial limitations, and therefore could not be 
monitored. 

The project has not started yet, since there is no 
funding allocated, and has been rescheduled to 
2016/17 subject to funding being made available. 

2013-2014 Facilities Heritage and Research department has revived 
the prison precinct document which was developed 
from EPP reference group projects as means of 
conserving memories of the prison though 
exhibitions and improved narratives. 
Implementation is now scheduled for 2016/17 
as part of visitor orientation centre being 
spearheaded by Marketing-Tourism. 

2013-2018 Exhibition 1. New MSP Exhibitions (E-Section exhibition's
completed and the electronic version/copy is ready 
for production and installation as soon as funds
are made available in 2015/16.
2. 4 APMHS Students Exhibitions were hosted in
2014/15 (Leprosy, From Robben Island to Marikana, 
Jonny Comas and Labour exhibitions),
3. Other exhibitions included; a view away
Exhibition, Slavery Route Exhibition, the Mandela
27 Exhibition and 'International Committee of
Red Cross Exhibition.
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Stikland Pilgrimage Project (Research, 
Memorial Design, Construction, 
Unveiling, Filming, DVD Production) 

2.12 Conduct Research and Document 
Memories of EPPs in accordance with 
EPP Reference Group Projects 

2.13 Establish a heritage training institute 
on Robben Island, renowned as an 
excellent learning centre for heritage 
management 

High 

High 

High 

2013 Memorial 

2013-2018 Materials 

This first phase of this project was completed in 
March 2013; and has since been suspended due 
to lack of funds. The phase on detailed interpretation 
of the memorial remains incomplete. 

The analysis of the EPP reference group material 
was continues through the production of thematic 
audio visual DVD ( E, G) and the Kitchen reference 
group subject. Lack of funding is derailing this 
project. 

2013-2018 Training Nothing done as yet 
facility 

Pending 

Table 3: Actions to Implement the Visitor Management Plan 

3.1 A good map and brochure must be Brochure Due to budgetary constraints RIM could not print 
available to visitors who make enquiries Marketing the maps. However a generic brochure with relevant 
about the tours or visit the NMG. These visitor information was printed in 2014/15. This 
should include information about Jetty map project will be only implemented in 2015/16. 
1, the Mayibuye Archive and the 
Nelson Mandela Gateway exhibitions 
programme. Designated areas can be 
defined on Robben Island maps of 
visitor facilities like information centres, 
resting areas, refreshment stalls and 
toilets for instance 

3.2 Make full use of the Auditorium as High 2013-2014 Facilities The auditorium is being used for public education 
an orientation and interpretation space, heritage programmes but this is below envisaged 
including showing documentaries and optimal usage. Plans are underway to optimise 
also informing people of the Mayibuye the use of the Nelson Mandela Gateway in order 
Archive to improve visitor experience. 

3.3 Investigate appropriate software and High 2013 VM System The visitor statistics are analyzed through the 
hardware technology and systems to booking system/web tickets platform. Instantaneous 
provide visitor numbers and patterns ferry schedules are being updated on email to 
instantaneously based on sales and all relevant stakeholders. There are limitations 
prior to their arrival, as well as provide on understanding visitor profiles and exploratory 
instantaneous presentation of changes searches on flexible platforms are being undertaken. 
in ferry schedules to visitors, for 
instance 

3.4 Focus on making debriefing High 2013 Product This will be incorporated in the product extension 
information and space available for through EOI in the financial year 2015/16. 
visitors, in terms of some form of 
narrative for the return journey from 
Robben Island 

3.5 Position information kiosks and High 2013-2018 Kiosks This has been partially implemented. The existing 
information staff at, or close to NMG, Information Desk is close to the NMG entrance 
during busy times with 2 info officers always mending the desk. 

Plans are under way to consider kiosks and Jetty 
one as extra information centres during peak season 

3.6 Provide for signage to NMG, as well High 2013 Facilities The optimization of the NMG Building in 2015/16 
as demarcated areas for embarking will incorporate the signage for all visitor designated 
and disembarking to separate arrivals spaces. However, boarding areas at NMG are 
from departures clearly marked and easily accessible. 

3.7 Conduct tourism impact assessment, High 2013 Report Not done and the Zonation Plan project is scheduled 
considering use zones on Robben for the 2015/16 financial year. It will identify all 
Island use zones and carrying capacity of the sites opened 

to the public. 
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Limit impact of long stay visitors and Draft Residency Policy was developed in 2014/15 
residents on short-stay visitors, like impacts and it is pending approval by Council in 2016/17 
establish a Residents Policy and 
Procedures, especially in terms of 
heritage management training to 
residents on Robben Island 

3.9 Link Jetty 1 into the tour product and High 2013 RI Currently, Education Department is working with 
investigate the viability of providing experience the Marketing Department to incorporate Jetty 1 
for a small boat ride between M-berth link as part of the tour product, including the dates 
at NMG and Jetty 1 when boats are cancelled in which tourists can 

still have visitor experience without going over 
to the Island. To be implemented in conjunction 
with the EOI in 2015/16. 

3.10 Plan diversification of the Robben High 2013 Report The current training of Tour Guides is designed 
Island experience with the tour guides in accordance with the multi-layered story of 
and the EPPA Robben Island in which, by telling almost all 

layers of the RI history, the experience is diversified. 
New Tour Guiding Manual is now in place. 

3.11 Prison guides to be trained in basic High 2013-2015 Trained The proposed training ofTour Guides will include 
conservation and security and in so staff aspects of First Aid and use of radios, which are 
doing be able to multi-task, as well already being used by Tour Guides 
as be skilled in First Aid and be 
equipped with kits and radios, for 
instance 

3.12 Develop a continuity plan and back High 2013-2015 Report The current Tour Guiding Training Manual - and 
up arrangements for prison guides and the entire training programme - is designed to 
their legacy phase out the current scenario of having Prison 

Guides and General Guides - the system that is 
being phased in is to ensure that all guides are 
trained similarly and have the same standard 
training, thereby ensuring continuity. 

RIM is exploring a transitional and continuity 
plan for retaining the social memory of EPPs. This 
is scheduled to be completed by 2016/17. 

3.13 The division of visitor groups into High 2013 Small The Marketing Department and Education 
smaller sizes of around 20 be groups Department are yet to develop and package new 
implemented products to allow visitors numbers to be reduced 

to 20 per guide. However, the current ferry schedule 
has implications and this is compounded by limited 
staff in view of the budgetary constraints posed 
by an over loaded structure. 

3.14 The development of a standard for High 2013-2014 Standard The current Tour Guide training programme is 
the presentation of heritage on Robben intended to standardize Robben Island narrative 
Island, making use of available and interpretation. The is a plan to introduce 
interpretative expertise and technology walking tours, an APP and street view of the island 

as part the new visitor experience 

3.15 Provide visitor orientation, arrival and High 2013-2015 Facilities A draft concept document was developed in 
waiting space. Spaces should 2014/15 focusing on the harbor precinct which 
specifically be allocated at Murray's specifies how the Murray Harbour should be used 
Bay harbour for orientation, wellness to increase visitor experience. This is expected 
checks; especially on bad sea weather to be implemented as part destination development 
days when there are seasick passengers in 2016/17. 

3.16 Clearly define a plan for visitor High 2013 Report Not yet done and will be part of the EOI on adaptive 
infrastructure upgrades re-uses as from 2016/17. Currently signage on 

the island is being revamped through the support 
of National Department of Tourism and this will 
be continued in 2015/16. 

3.17 Apply for necessary authorisation i.t.o. High 2013-2015 Approvals RIM is obtaining permits for all applicable projects 
EIA and HIA application and present from SAHRA and DEA. 
necessary documentation to DEA and 
SAHRA for all proposed new or 
upgrades of faci I ities 

3.18 Apply for necessary authorisation i.t.o. High 2013-2014 Report Once the Blue stone Quarry project is restored 
EIA and HIA application and present on the approval of the Tripartite Committee, 
necessary documentation to DEA and interpretation facilities will then be planned. 
SAHRA for all proposed new or 
upgrades of faci I ities 
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Plan and construct the Not yet done and will be part of the overall product 
platform/boardwalk at the Limestone reconfiguration of the island in the outer years 
Quarry to provide visitor safety and as consolidated through the EOI in the outer 

years. 

3.20 Plan and construct resting areas and 2013-2014 Facilities Nothing done yet and will be implemented as 
toilet facilities for various tour options part of the EOI in the outers years of the METFF 

3.21 Renovate Guest House High 2013-2014 Facilities Guest House will be renovated in 2015/16 

3.22 Renovate Mess, Kitchen and Medium 2013-2014 Facilities Mess Kitchen will be renovated in 2016/17 
Landscaping linked to Female Asylum 

3.23 Renovate Prison Sports Field Medium 2013 Facilities The Prison Sports field will be renovated in 2016/17 
and Tennis Courts 

3.24 Implement options to make Robben High 2013-2015 Facilities The existing facilities will be upgraded to cater 
Island accessible to people with special for people with special needs in by 2016/17. 
needs 

3.25 Each ferry should have either audio High 2013 Facilities Nothing done yet on the ferries though tailor made 
equipment/audio visual equipment, DVDs are being produced in preparation of this 
which is able to play RIM approved service once new ferries are procured. 
materials about the Island 

3.26 Establish catering facilities in three High 2013-2016 Facilities Nothing done but will be considered as part of 
main areas being behind the Visitors the EOI in 2015/16 and 2016/17 
Centre at Murray's Bay harbor, MSP 
Dining Hall and Alpha 1. RIM Shops 
sell refreshments. 

3.27 Original prison library to be converted Medium 2016-2018 Facilities Nothing done yet but will be considered as part 
into a reading room/internet cafe. The of product enhancement in the outer years of 
dining room itself can also be used this ICMP 
as resting space, coffee bar, water kiosk 
and information kiosk for visitors 

3.28 Promote and market the RIM brand High 2013-2018 Marketing In progress and at various platforms e.g. INDABA 
to local and international target markets 2014 
through cost effective marketing and 
promotional tools 

3.29 Investigate and implement ways in High 2013-2018 Marketing Currently being Implemented through partnerships 
which to enhance RIM's national profile with National Department ofTourism, South African 
through strategic links with other Tourism and Cape Town Tourism. 
institutions and government 
departments 

3.30 Create awareness of RIM's significance High 2013-2018 Marketing Profiled in the new website and other marketing 
in line with the ICMP, through profiling platforms such as the Google street view. 
RIM's core programmes and calendar 
year events, as well as others 

3.31 Align Marketing and Communications High 2013-2018 Marketing In Progress, through appointment of the PR & 
strategy with the Improved Visitor Communications in September 2014 
Experience 

3.32 Enhance tourism product development High 2013-2018 Products In progress, an MOU with NOT currently is being 
together with other stakeholders and finalized where they will support RIM financially 
potential partners on Digital Marketing and Training. 

3.33 Visitors should be met by hospitality High 2013-2018 Trained From March 2015, the Tour Guides are being 
staff at NMG and by tour guides at staff trained in line with the RI standardized narrative 
Murray's Bay harbour and RIM's New Business Model. 

Information Officers welcome visitors at both 
ends , who are then handed over to Tour Guides. 

3.34 Ferry crew must be trained in High 2013-2018 Trained Service excellence training conducted for all RIM 
hospitality services and customer care. staff staff in November 2016 
They can take responsibility for 
information sharing, ensuring comfort, 
particularly for those physically 
challenged, communicating with the 
tour guides on the Island and on the 
return journey issue visitor survey cards, 
well as ensuring a clean and function 
ferry between journeys 
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Implement a local and international RIM will develop a new marketing strategy in 
programme to ensure visitation in 2015/16. Current campaigns focus on internationals 
winter periods that travel throughout the year. 

3.36 Find other ways to attract visitors during Medium 2013-2018 Report Nothing done yet and will be part of the new 
low season marketing strategy in 2015/16. 

3.37 Conduct interpretation research and 2013-2018 Workshop Not yet done but a Strategic Research Agenda 
training with tour guides to diversify developed to help close information gaps. 
the presentation of the heritage of 
Robben Island 

3.38 Implement MSP, Bluestone and High 2013-2014 Tours Not yet done 
Limestone Quarry Interpretation tours 
and provide walking options. Jetty 1 
and NMG exhibitions can be linked 
to the various tours, or be available 
as separate options 

3.39 Plan for self-guided visits should be High 2013-2014 Tours Not yet done 
available on trails, with adequate 
information in a brochure and 
provision for resting spots and toilet 
facilities, for instance 

3.40 Timetable of guided visits should be Urgent 2013 Timetable Not yet done 
clear and accessible and meeting points 
for departure of guided visits should 
be well defined 

3.41 Shuttle services to run according to Medium 2015-2018 Shuttle Not yet done and awaits product diversification, 
schedule along the main road of service as well as the Marketing Strategy being developed 
Robben Island, Interpretative Routes by March 2016 
and parked at designated stops such 
as Dining Hall of MSP, Murray's Bay 
Harbour and Sobukwe Complex, for 
transporting self-guided visitors 

3.42 Focus on offering events and High 2013-2018 Report Limited events and conferences, waiting the 
conferences, as well as other upgrading of infrastructure and finalisation of the 
specialised tours Adaptive re-use procurement. 

3.43 Enhance the overall visitor experience High 2013-2018 Service Ongoing training of Info Staff leveraging on training 
through effective and well-coordinated programmes from NDT. 
customer service 

3.44 Conduct surveys on visitor experience, High 2013-2018 Surveys Ongoing visitor survey loaded on the website. 
profiling information and feed into Stakeholder surveys done annually. 
planning and marketing 

Table 4: Actions to Implement the Natural Environment Management Plan 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

4.4 

4.5 

Environmental Advisory Committee 

Establish communication procedures 
for the RIM Environmental 
Management Unit 

Establish working relationships with 
management partners 

Institute mobile signage for no-go areas 
to protect seabirds and shorebirds 

Institute speed humps and redirect 
traffic during bird breeding season, 
to protect African penguins, a 
threatened species 

2013 

High 2013 

High 2013 

High 2013 

High 2013 

Committee Environmental Advisory Committee will be 
established in the 2016/17 financial year 

Procedure 

Working 
relationships 

Signs 

Speed 
humps 

All the events to take place on the site are scanned 
by the RIM Environmental Management Unit 
to ensure that possible impacts are identified and 
mitigated 

All the events to take place on the site are scanned 
by the RIM Environmental Management Unit 
to ensure that possible impacts are identified and 
mitigated 

The signage on the site is being improved; more 
than 130 signs will be installed in 2015/16 
especially to protect sea and shoreline birds. 

The signage is being improved and the traffic is 
being redirected away from where birds are breeding. 
The feasibility of speed humps is being investigated 
with RIM's Transport and Built Environment Units. 
Speed humps not in place yet 
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The Zonation Plan project is scheduled for the 
2016/17 financial year but preparatory work has 
commenced. 

4.7 Investigate ecotourism opportunities Medium 2013 Report EOI being analysed and viable, compatible options 
as a diversification option for visitor to be implemented in the outer years of the 2nd 
routes ICMP. 

4.8 Investigate an environmental education Medium 2013-2014 Report New service providers/contractors working on 
and awareness campaign site are inducted and monitored. Moving forward, 

the Unit will establish an environmental education 
strategy for the entire organization in 2016/17. 

4.9 Design firebreaks and maintenance High 2013 Fire breaks The firebreaks and maintenance management plan 
management plan with stakeholders are being maintained with the support City of 

Cape Town as an annual programme. 

4.10 Develop an Alien Plant Control, Medium 2013 Report The programme for alien plant control and 
Rehabilitation and Vegetation Disposal vegetation disposal is in place; however, site 
Programme rehabilitation plan must still be devised. 

4.11 Fire-fighting training for environmental High 2013 Trained Basic Fire-fighting training has been offered to 
management and other RIM staff staff the Environmental Management staff. RIM is 

currently forging partnership with the City of Cape 
Town to assist in training more staff members. 

4.12 Protect African penguins and other High 2013 Protection RIM is a member of the Department of 
seabird habitat under relevant Environmental Affairs (Ocean and the Coast) 
legislation. Biodiversity Management Plan for African Penguins 

Steering Committee. RIM hosts Earth watch research 
and protection activities on African Penguins. 

4.13 Make a decision on management of High 2013 Report Data (i.e. census, desktop study) is being collected 
large herbivores and on this basis on the big herbivores to inform the plan moving 
establish a Herbivore Eradication forward. 
Plan/Herbivore Management Plan 

4.14 Establish a Game Fowl Management Medium 2014 Report Desktop studies are being conducted and 
Plan engagements with stakeholders are also being 

done to inform the plan. 

4.15 Establish a Feral Animal Eradication Medium 2014 Programme No Feral Animal Education Programme has been 
Programme established 

4.16 Establish a Small Indigenous Animals Medium 2014 Programme Tortoises, insects and marine birds are being 
Monitoring Programme monitored. There is a need for a baseline study 

to establish all fauna! species of the site. 

4.17 Formalise partnerships to address illegal High 2013 Compliance A memorandum of understanding was signed with 
marine living resource exploitation monitoring DAFF. There is no illegal harvesting of marine 

living resources within the one nautical mile (buffer 
zone) of the site. 

4.18 Address coastal impacts at Murray's Medium 2013-2015 Report This is an ongoing project; the sand dune is being 
Bay harbour due to sand accretion attended to through sand trapping. The Murray's 

Harbour is being surveyed by South African Council 
of Ceo-sciences and annual surveys are being 
scheduled to inform decision making in the near 
future. 

4.19 Commence monitoring of RIM energy Medium 2013-2015 Report The alternative energy feasibility study was 
use and produce a Sustainability conducted in 2015 and RIM is exploring options 
Strategy for implementation in 2016/17. Compliance with 

heritage protocols is critical for the chosen option 
or a combination of options. 

4.20 Compliance with the World Heritage Medium 2013-2015 State of RIM is attending all Site Managers Forum meetings 
Reporting Cycles (National/WHC level) Conservation coordinated by the State Party as part of compliance 

Reports/Site to the South African World Heritage Committee 
Managers protocols. Progress and Annual reports on the 

Forum 2nd ICMP also submitted to DEA. 
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State of Conservation Repo 
Challenges under the period of review 

The implementation of the 2nd ICMP has faced the following challenges; 

i. Resolving the UNESCO 2011 recommendations

The Management Authority was pre-occupied with implementing the above recommendations to avert the possibility 
of being placed under further reactive monitoring missions. Therefore, priority in 2014/15 focused on resolving the 
recommendations, alongside implementing the 2nd ICMP. 

ii. Lack of skills and capacity within the support structures

Though some vacancies were as recommended by the World Heritage Committee, RIM is also undertaking a 
reorganizational review of the institution to reduce staff compensation and release funding for programmes, which 
are not sufficiently supported due to seasonal challenges with the flow of revenue. It is hoped that this process will 
allow for the appointment of skilled and competent support staff. 

iii. Financial constraints for programmes and activities

The current funding model has not been favourable for programmes and activities outlined in the 2nd ICMP due to 
the seasonal flow of revenue and is dependent on the ferry operation, which rarely operated smoothly in 2014/15 
and 2015/16. The constant breakdowns of RIM owned ferries, including the decision to stop running the largest ferry 
due to a technical problem, resulted in hiring private boats for 2015/16. This implies a decline in revenue generation 
with serious consequences financial support that can be given to the ICMP. Without an adequate baseline budget 
for the ICMP, some programmes were suspended and deferred to the next financial year (2015/16). The case by case 
approach for programmes makes it difficult to plan implementation with certainty. Most projects have been deferred 
on annual basis due to prioritization of hiring private ferries and supporting municipal services (electricity generation, 
water desalination and sewerage systems), especially in 2015/16. While alternative funding has been sourced for 
some programmes, e.g. from National Department of Tourism (NOT), partner-programmes with Freedom Park Trust, 
Department of Correctional Services and many others, financial support remains inadequate for fully implementing 
the 2nd ICMP. 

The Management Authority has embarked on the following mitigation measures; 

1. Adopting Adaptive re-use of infrastructure to generate extra revenue;

2. Considering alternative sources of energy in order to reduce expenditure on municipal services

3. Product diversification in order to create different revenue streams, including winter period when visitor numbers
are very low.

4. Undertaking a mid-term review of the 2nd ICMP with a view of aligning it funding framework.

iv. Transfer of Built Environment Maintenance from Department of Public Works to RIM (2013/14)
and back to DPW (2014/15)

During the period under review, all outstanding projects relating to the built environment (including the restoration 
of the blue stone quarry site) were transferred from Department of Public Works to RIM only at the end of 2013, when 
it became clear that DPW had failed to maintain the island. This was reported in the UNESCO 2011 report and also 
raised by the Office of the Public Protector in South Africa in November 2013. However, this transfer had no financial 
support from, which placed a burden on RIM and caused a reprioritization to support municipal services. In 2014/15 
DAC indicated that DPW would be coming back to resume duty on the island under a Tripartite Agreement comprising 
DAORIM/DPW, a process concluded in June 2015. This created transitional problems from November 2014 as parallel 
processes were being undertaken by DPW/COEGA and RIM. 
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State of Conservation Repo 
Approval of the State of Conservation Report 

Submitted by: S. Buthelezi Position: Chairperson of RIM COUNCIL Date: 031/03/201 6 

Signature: _________ _ 

For and on behalf of the Management Authority of Robben Island World Heritage Site (C916) 
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''While Wfl will not forget the brutality of apartheid, we 

will not want Robben Island to be a monument of our 

hardship and suffering. We would want it to be a symbol 

of the triumph of the human spirit against the forces of 

evil; a triumph of wisdom and largeness of spirit against 

small mindedness and pettiness; a triumph of courage 

and determination over human frailty and weakness 11 

Ahmed Kathrada - Prisoner No. 468/64 




